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Lleida, 10th April 2019

Relevant event:

Comparison with 2018 data advance, audit reporting and consolidated accounts
2018,audit reporting and individual parent accounts, and the presentation of the

organizational structure

Under the provisions of Article17 of the Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 regarding market abuse
and article 228 of the modified text of the Spanish Stock Market Act, approved by Spanish
Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015, of 23 October and related provisions, as well as Circular
6/2018 of the Spanish Alternative Investment Market, we inform LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS S.A (hereinafter "Lleida.net", "Lleida Group" The "Company" or the "Company").

On 22 January 2019, the Company published on a Relevant Event, an advance on the main
figures of the Company's consolidated Income and debt Account. This advance was made
based on the available accounting information

As of today, this information is complemented with the following documents:

- Audits Report and Consolidated annual accounts for the financial year 2018.
- Audits Report and Individual annual accounts for the financial year 2018.

- Audit on the Organizational Structure and Internal Control Systems.

We are available for any clarifications needed.

Firmado digitalmente
por 40897755Y
'FRANCISCO JOSE
SAPENA (R:A25345331)
Fecha: 2019.04.09
20:14:39 +02'00'

Francisco Sapena Soler, CEO of
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Lleida.net Group 2018 results report

On 22 January, Lleida.net Group published a result preview with the provisional data were
available.

After reviewing by the company's auditors, the variation between the account data preview and
those included in the consolidated annual accounts formulated by the Board of Directors is

appended.

Figures in thousands of euros RE 22 January 2019 audited Annual accounts Var.€ Var.% |
Sales 12,368 12,359 (9) 0%
Sale costs (6,347) (6,335) (12) 0%
Gross Margin 6,021 6,024 3 0%
Staff expenses (2,639) (2,443) (196) -7%
External services (2,306) (2,516) 210 9%
Other incomes 23 27 4 17%
Activations 787 787 0 0%
EBITDA 1,886 1,879 (7) 0%
Depreciation (1,152) (1,152) 0 0%
Compensations (198) (198) 0
Ordinary activities result 536 529 (7) -1%
Net Financial Debt (92) (100) 8 9%
Exchange Rate Differences (9) (17) 8 89%
Earnings before Tax 435 412 (23) -5%

As we can see, the variations are not significant and can be summarized in three main lines:

- The gross margin is greater by 3 thousand euros due to the regularization of the estimates
made by the Group.

- There is a variation in personnel expenses, initially the cost of independent third parties were
included as personnel expense and in the formulation of accounts has been included in external
services.

- The participation of the company accounted for by the equity method in India has been
provisioned, having an impact on the financial result of 16 thousand euros. The group has chosen
to change the penetration strategy in that country at the time being.

All the other provisions do not have significant variations and as result we have:
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Figures in thousands of euros 31/12/2017 31/12/2018 Var.€ Var.% |
Sales 9,882 12,359 2,477 25%
Sale costs (4,638) (6,335) 1,697 37%
Gross Margin 5,244 6,024 780 15%
Staff expenses (2,241) (2,443) 202 9%
External services (2,449) (2,516) 67 3%
Other incomes 21 27 6 29%
Activations 849 787 (62) -7%
EBITDA 1,424 1,879 455 32%
Depreciation (1,078) (1,152) 74 7%
Compensations (77) (198) 121 157%
Total operation costs 269 529 260 97%
Net Financial Debt (113) (100) (23) -12%
Exchange Rate Differences (96) (17) (79) -82%
Earnings before Tax 60 412 352 587%
Profit tax 0 (140) 140
Profit 60 272 212 353%

- Gross margin increased 780 thousand euros over fiscal 2017,derived from an increase in both
the wholesale SMS sales as well as the increase in SaaS sales.

Thanks to its continuous investment in R + D + i Lleida.net has to position itself as a reference
provider within the certification and electronic contracting markets. With large accounts, both
domestic and international strengthening its presence in Latin America focusing mainly on
Colombia and expanding its activity in Africa and Europe. Moreover, Lleida.net has make the
most of the opportunities that have emerged in the Wholesale market thanks to its global
network of interconnections.

- The operating result has nearly doubled, from 269 thousand euros in 2017 to 529 thousand
euros. Continuous investment in recruiting , both in R & D and technical areas, with
postgraduates and PhD’s. The increase in personnel expenses, without considering
compensation, increased from 2,241 thousand euros to 2,443 thousand euros, 9%, when the
workforce reached an average of 65 people, 18% higher than in 2017.

- Lleida.net has multiplied by seven, the result before taxes, and has increased the EBITDA in 455
thousand euros. An exhaustive control of costs, together with an increase in sales, has led to an
exponential increase in the results.
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Consolidated balance Thousands of euros 2017 2018
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,580 4,377
Intangible fixed assets 3,847 3,842
Tangible fix assets 388 344
Investments in group and associated companies 17 -
Long term financial investments 190 188
Deferred tax assets 138 3
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,057 4,509
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable 2,290 2,441
ST financial investments 1,012 703
ST accruals 225 238
Cash and other equivalent liquid assets 530 1,127
TOTAL ASSETS 8,637 8,886
TOTAL EQUITY 2,871 3,069
Shareholder’s equity 2,765 2,994
Conversion differences 105 74
External partners 1 1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,143 1,374
Long term debts 1,143 1,374
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,623 4,443
Short term provisions 31 85
Short term debts 2,810 2,346
Trade payables and other accounts payable 1,782 2,012
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,637 8,886

In terms of Balance, the main intangible variations are explained by the R + D + i developments
that have been undertaken this year, for an amount of 787 thousand euros which are aimed at
strengthening the SaaS line services. In Dec 2018 Lleida.net was awarded the elDAS type-
approval on its qualified service on certified electronic delivery (E-delivery). It has become the
first Spanish company to receive it, and the sixth in Europe to obtain the aforementioned type-
approval. This type-approval is the result of the efforts and investment in R+D Lleida.net has
been performing in recent years. Moreover, the system is based in a method for which Lleida.net
has applied for a worldwide patent. In addition, the type-approval means that it can be used at
European level without any national restriction, and their certifications should be admitted by
default by any European court or agency.

In terms of current assets, there is no significant variation compared to the end of 2017 in the
number of customers, although the sales figure has increased, the Group has managed to
maintain customer collection times and reduce the loss ratio.
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In terms of liabilities, it should be noted that there are no significant variations with respect to
the data published in the Relevant Event on net indebtedness, which stands at 1.9 million euros
as previously mentioned.

Figures in thousands of euros 2017 2018 Var. € Var.%
Long term debts 1,143 1,374 231 20%
Short term debts 2,810 2,346 (464) -17%
Total debt 3,953 3,720 (233) -6%
ST financial investments 1,012 703 (309) -31%
Cash and other equivalent liquid assets 530 1,127 597 113%
Total available 1,542 1,830 288 19%
Net Financial debt 2,411 1,890 (521) -22%

NFT/EBITDA 1.69 1.01
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND
CONSOLIDATED DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2018 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDIT
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

{TRANSLATION FROM THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS TO BE ISSUED ORIGINALLY IN
SPANISH AND PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCQUNTING
PRINCIPLES IN SPAIN. IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY, THE SPANISH-LANGUAGE VERSION

PREVAILS) l B D 0
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, 5.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Annual Accounts and
Consolidated Director's Report for the financial
year 2018 together with the Audit Report on the
Consolidated Annual Accountsissued by an Independent Auditor

AUDIT REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017

Consolidated Income and Expenses Statement for the year ended on December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017,

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the year ended on December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017,

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended on December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017.

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts 2018

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2018
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LLEIDANET SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

AUDIT REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
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Audit report on the consolidated financial statements issued
by an independent auditor

To the Shareholders of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. (the Parent) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (the Group), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2018, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and the notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year then ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give, in all material
respects, a true and fair view of the Company's equity and financial position at December
31, 2018, as well as its consolidated results and cash flows for the financial year ending
on said date, in accordance with the application of the regulatory framework of financial
information (identified in note 2.a of the consolidated annual report) and, in particular,
with the accounting principles and criteria contained therein.

Basis of opinion

We have performed our audit in accordance with the regulations governing the auditing
of accounts in force in Spain. Our responsibilities under these standards are described
below in the section on the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the annual accounts
in our report.

We are independent from the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements,
including those of independence, which are applicable to our audit of the financial
statements in Spain as required by the regulations governing the activity of auditing
accounts. Accordingly, we have not provided services other than those of the audit of
accounts nor have concurred situations or circumstances that, in accordance with the
provisions of the aforementioned governing regulations, have compromised the necessary
independence.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit issues

The key audit matters are matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in the formation of our opinion on these and
we do not express a separate opinion on those matters.
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Key audit issues

Audit response

Valuation of capitalized research expenditures

As described in notes 3.b and 5 to the
accompanying consolidated report, the Group
has intangible assets for expenses on
capitalised research projects of a significant
amount., These expenses must be specifically
individualised by project and have reasons of
economic-commercial profitability, among
other requirements in order to be capitalized
in the Group's balance sheet, In addition, the
assessment by the Parent's management and
directors of their recoverable amount or the
need  for  impairment  involves  value
judgements and estimates. For these reasons,
we have considered the valuation of these
assets to be a ey issue in our audit.

We have carried out the following audit
procedures, among others:

- Understanding of the policies and
procedures applied by the Group for the
capitalization of research expenses,

- We have analysed a sample of activations
of the projects during the vear, obtaining
evidence such as the hours and cost of the
same incurred by the workers in the
different projects and the cost of external
collaborations.

- We have obtained the certificates issued
by an independent third party on the
projects regarding the validity of the
capitalised amounts.

We have obtained a detail of the book
value of the research  expenses
individualized by prejects, and analysed
the sales projections for the different
projects, profitability and real sales for
the vyear, goodness of the data, the
reasonableness of the hypotheses, the
degree of compliance to date, revision of
the arithmetic calculation, analysis of the
discount rate, sensitivity to the variation
of hypothesis and deviations in past
estimates in order to evaluate the
reasonableness of the recoverable value of
the research expenses.

- We have verified the correct amortization
of the different projects capitalised on the
basis of the current regulations applied by
the Group.

= Finally, we have verified that the notes to
the accompanying consolidated financial
statements include the related disclosures
required by the applicable financial
reporting framewaork. In this respect,
Motes 3.b and 5 to the accompanying
consolidated annual accounts include the
aforementioned disclosures.
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Key audit Issues Audit response

Application of the golng concern principle We have carried out the following audit
procedures, among others:
Since the Group has historically presented

negative working capital and given the degree - Understanding of the policies and
of indebtedness of the Group at year-end, procedures applied by the Group in the
which represents 42% of its liabilities (46% In estimation process of the Business Plan and
2017), it Is necessary for the Group to comply Treasury Budget,

with its business plan, as well as to obtain new

financing through new loans and renewal of - Obtaining the Business Plan and Treasury
credit policies. During 2018 and 2019, up to the Budget prepared by the Management of
date of this report, the Group is generating the Parent Company.

positive cash flow and renewal of policies is

taking place. The net financial debt has gone - Obtaining support documentation relating
from 2.410 thousand Eurcs in 2017 to 1.901 to both the contracting of new loans and
thousand Euros in 2018, it means a decrease of the renewal of credit policies at maturity.

21% in one fiscal year.
= We have analysed the reasonableness of

These circumstances are causing and the estimates and assumptions of the
mitigating factors of doubt regarding the Business Plan and the Treasury Budget
application of the going concern principle in made by the Parent Company's directors,
the formulation of annual accounts, whose through meetings with the Group's
evaluation invelves wvalue judgements and managemsnt and verification of verifiable
estimates. For these reasons, we considered data, both of the key hypotheses used, as
the application of the going concern principle well as concordance of these with those
as a key issue in our audit. used in previous periods by the Group.

- We have evaluated the goodness of
Management’s forecasts by comparing the
deviations and reasons for these between
the budgeted and actual figures
corresponding to recent years.

We have analysed the degree of
compliance with both the Business Plan
and the Treasury Budeet based on 2018
figures, and we have analysed the financial
situation to date.

Finally, we have verified that the notes to
the accompanying consolidated annual
accounts include the related disclosures
required by the applicable financial
reporting framework, In this regard, note
2.c of the attached consolidated report
includes the aforementioned breakdown of
information.
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Other information: Management report

The other information comprises exclusively the management report for the financial
year 2018, the formulation of which is the responsibility of the Parent's directors and
does not form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated annual accounts does not cover the consolidated
annual report. Our responsibility over the consolidated management report, in
accordance with what is required by the regulations governing the audit activity, consists
of evaluating and reporting on the consistency of the consolidated management report
with the consolidated financial statements, based on the knowledge of the Entity
obtained in performing the audit of the aforementioned consolidated accounts and
without including information other than that obtained as evidence during the same.
Likewise, our responsibility is te evaluate and report that the content and presentation
of the management report are in accordance with the applicable regulations. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there are material misstatements, we
are obliged to report this.

Based on the work performed, as described in the preceding paragraph, the information
contained in the consolidated management report agrees with that in the consolidated
financial statements for financial year 2018 and its content and presentation are in
accordance with the applicable regulations,

The responsibility of the management and the audit in the respect committee of the
consolidated financial statements

The management of the Parent Company are responsible for formulating the
accompanying the accompanying financial statements so that they give a true image of
the consolidated assets, the consolidated financial situation and the consolidated results
of the Company, in accordance with the regulatory framework on financial information
applicable to the Entity in Spain, and of the internal control that they consider necessary
to allow the preparation of the financial statements free of material misstatement, due
to fraud or error.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the management are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, revealing,
as appropriate, the matters related with a company in operation and using the accounting
principle of a going concern except if the management intend to liguidate the Company
or cease operations, or if there is no other realistic alternative.

The Parent's audit committee is responsible for supervising the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

The auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, due to fraud or error, and
to fssue an audit report that contains our opinion.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the regulations governing the audit activity in force in
Spain will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.,

As part of an audit in accordance with the regulations governing the account auditing
activity in Spain, we exercise professional judgment and maintain an attitude of
professional scepticism throughout the entire audit. Also:

= We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated
financial statements, due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to
respond to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or circumvention of
internal control.

*  We obtain knowledge of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

=« We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates and disclosures by the Parent's directors.

« We conclude whether the use, by the Parent's directors, of the accounting principle
of the Group as a going concern is adeguate and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, we conclude on whether or not there is material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that can generate significant doubts about the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that there is material
uncertainty, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the
corresponding information disclosed in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are not adequate, we express a modified opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained at the date of our audit report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be a going concern

o We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We are required to communicate with the Parent's audit committee regarding, amongst
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during the
course of the audit,

We also required the Parent’s audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with the relevant ethical requirements, including those of independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Among the matters that have been communicated to the Group's audit committee, we
determine those that have been of the greatest significance in the audit of the financial
statements for the current period and that are, consequently, the key issues of the audit,

We describe these matters in our audit report unless legal or regulatory provisions
prohibit public disclosure of the matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Additional report to the Parent's Audit Committee

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with that expressed in our additional
report to the Parent's Audit Committee dated April 9, 2019.

Contract period

The Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting held on June 13, 2016 appointed us as
the Group's auditors for a period of three years, starting from the year ended December
31, 2016.

Previously, we were appointed by resolution of the General Shareholders' Meeting for the
three-year period and we have been auditing the accounts uninterruptedly since the year
ended December 31, 2007, and the Parent Company has been a Public Interest Entity
(PIE) since 2015.

Services provided

The services, other than the audit of accounts, provided to the Group are detailed in
Hote 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

BDO Audrtﬂﬂ .L.P. {R{]AC n* 51 2?3]
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR
THE PERIOD ENDED ON DECEMBER 31, 2018




fnterim Consolidated Finaneial Statements of Group Lieidanenvorks Servels Telemdtics, SA. and Subsidiaries

S the year 2018

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
{(Expressed in Euros)

Notes to the 5

Consolidated
ASSETS Annual Accolinis 31122018 e B 1 B
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4377.136,73 4.579.953,77
Intangible assets Maote 5 3841.712,39 1847.507,50
Tangible fixed asseis Mote & 343.514.84 ARTBIT 4T
Land and buildings 163.217,11 143.327.21
Technical installations and other tangible fixed assets 180.297,73 244.4490,26
Long-term investments in group and - 16.708,11
affiliated eompanics
Shares in equity method - 16.708,11
Long-term financial investments MNate § 188.928,55 189,820,064
Deferred Tax Assets Mote 14 2,980,095 138.100,65
CURRENT ASSETS 4.508.568.44 4.056.611,85
Trade and other receivables 2.440.972 35 2289412 62
Client receivables for sales and services Mole 2.2 219861284 217220760
Sundry debtors Maote 8.2 7978, 65 38.993.92
Stafl’ Mote 8.2 428040 462500
Current tax assets Mote 14 112.803.14 29.691.49
Cither receivables from Public Authorities Mote 4 46,107,32 43.802.61
Short-term financial assets Note §.2 T03.005,50 1.012.416,04
Short-term aceruals 237.007,74 224,784,406
Cash and cash equivalents Mote 8.1.n 1.115.538,83 529.998,13
Cash 1. 115.538.83 52059813
TOTAL ASSETS 8.886.005,17 863650562
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, 5.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

{ Expressed in Euros)

. Notestothe,
__ | Consolidated Anaual » oy
(EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Accounis 31122018 /1212017
EQUITY 3.068.917.51 237123211
Equity 2.994.454.46 2.765.485.06
Capital MNote 12.1 320,998,586 S20.998,.86
Share Capital A20.99% Ba 320008 B
Izzue Preminm Mote 12,3 524434428 5.244.344.28
Reserves Note 12.2 {L.B8R.464,98) {1.923,760,42)
Legal and statutony 47.503,72 47.503,72
Other Reserves (1.935.968,70) (1971264, 14)
(Shares and own holdings in equity) Note 12.4 (954.287,73) (¥35.557,23)
Financial year resuli
attributed to the parent company Mote 18 271.864,03 50.460,37
Consolidated Losses and Profits 27186095 5945738
(Mfinority interest losses and profits) 3,08 2,59
Adjustments for changes in value T3. 781,33 105, 158,54
Minority interests MNote 4 68,72 687,71
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1.373.581,25 1.143.026,35
Long-term dehbts 1.373.581,25 1.143.026,35
Debts with credit institutions Mote 9.1 L 126.973,02 1LO23.296.73
Financial lease debis MNote 9.1 28.646,14 48.443,90
Other financial Habilities MNote 9.1 217.962,09 71,285,712
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4.443.506,41 4.622.207,16
Short-term provisions 85.450,00 31,320,00
Other provisions B5.450,00 31.320,00
Short-terms debts Note 9.1 2.345.516,67 2.809.564,64
Delsts with credit institutions 2.253.038,00 ZT32.604.86
Financial lease debis 19.7497.76 19.454,57
Other financial lishilities T2.680.91 37.505,21
Trade and other payables 2.012.539,74 1.781.322,52
Suppliers Mote 9.1 1. 446.569,02 I.125.581,58
Sunidiy creditors Mole 9.1 21243328 17387719
staff (remuneration payable) Mote 9.1 12.014,73 2.053,13
Other debtz with Public Authorities Maote 14 152,900,323 100,966,777
Advances from clients Mote 9.1 188.622.38 178,843 85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8.886.005,17 8.636.565,62




Diterim Consolidated Finaneial Staiements of Group Lleidauetvorks Serveis Telematics, 5.4, and Subsidiaries

Jur the year 2018

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSES STATEMENT

FORTHE YEAR ENDED ON DECEBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

{Expressed in Euros)

| Notes to the |
e | IS _ Consolidated NIt

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS Annual Accounts 2018 2017 !
Net turnover Note 21 12.359,533,58 ©.581.552.38
Waork performed by the Company For its assets MNuote 5 THO.G36,39 RB48.957,59
Supplies Mote 15.8 {6.335.448,72) {4.638.470L8T)
Goods consumed (6.335.448,72) {4.638470,87)
Other operating income 2743770 43.4410,19
Siall expenses (2.641.206,16) {2.318.339,63)
Wage, salaries and the like (2.035.985,95) (1.756.066,42)
Fringe benclits Mote 15.b (585.220.21) (562273.21)
Other operating expenses (2.515.077,78) (2.449.198,78)
External charges for services {2.441.813,70) (2,326.222.98)
Taxes (50,460,359 (33, 158.84)
Losses, Impairment and change in trade provisions

(16.281,28) (B6.873,54)
Other current operating expenses (52241 (2.540,42)
Amortization of fixed assets Motes 5 and 6 (L152.433,1%) (1.078.247,14)
Other earnings (h65,21) {20.963,1%9)
OPERATING EARNIGS 528.776,61 268.730,55
Financial income Mote 15.¢ 465,50 17.688,78
Finaneial expenses Mote 15.¢ (D2.120,88) (131.462,99)
Change in Tair value of Anancial instruments Note 15.¢ B. 769,51 3BT,35
Exchange differences Mate 15,0 {16.789,93) {95.660,11)
Impairments of financial instruments MNote 15.¢ (16.708,41) -
FINANCIAL EARNINGS (116.384.21) (209.046,27)
PRE-TAX EARNINGS 412,392 40 50.683,58
Prafit tax Mote 14 (140.531.45) (226,20)
FINANCIAL YEAR'S EARNINGS Mote 18 271.860,95 50.457,38
Result attributed to the Parent Company 271.864,03 59.460,37
Result attributed to minority interests (3,08) (2,97
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for the financial year 2008

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR 2018 AND 2017

{Expressed in Euros)

2018 2017

CASH TLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1.656.626,92 1.389.529,21
Financial year's pre-tax earnings 412,392.40 50.683,58
Adjustments to carnings 1.322.438,75 1 150,827,049
Fixed asset amortization 1.152.433,19 1.OTE 247,14
Valuation changes for impairment 32,989,609 #6,875,54
Change in provisions 54.130,00 (127.682,45)
Finsmeial income (465,500 {17.688,T8)
Financinl expenses G2.120,88 131.462.99
Change in Fair valoe of financial nstroments (R.709,51) (387.35)
Changes in current capital 102.93533 J00.5384,32
Dyebtors and other accounts receivable (84,641,362 (90.770,49)
Cither current asseis (12.823.28) (201,20
Trade payables and other accounts payable 20039997 J91.356,01
Other cash Mow from operating activities (181.139,56) (121.365,78)
Inferest payments (22, 120,88) (131.462,95)
Receipls of interests (407.28) 17.688,78
Reecipts {payments) for profit tax (aE.al1.40) (7.591.57%
CASH 'LOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (TR2.9:49,749) (L 117.965,60)
Fayments for investments (1.107.149,31) (1.207.203,63)
Intangible assets (1018267 31) (L 174.190.27)
Tangiblc assets (83.754.42) (33.013.36)
Other financial ossels (5.127.38) -
Receivables from disposals 319.072,14 §9.238,03
Other Mnancial assels J15.072,14 B9.238,03
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (276,392,41) {1.235.614,84)
Receipts and pavments for equity instruments (42.899.34) {TR699.29)
Acguisition of own equity instruments (b2 899 34} (75659 20
Recelpts and panyments for financial-liability instruments (233.493.07) (1.155.915,55)
Issneance 1.106.852,07 -
Amoungs owed to eredit institutions G5, 000,00 -
Others 161.852.07

Repreryenent avid amoriisatfon of; (1.340.345,14) (1. 155.915,55)
Amounts owed to credit institutions (1,340,345, 143 { 1. 108.864,65)
Others - (47.050,90)
NET INCREASE/DECREASE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 507.284,72 (B64.051,23)
Cash and cash equivalents at starl of the financial vear 520.998.13 1494049 36
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 1.127.252,85 520.9098,13
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YFAR 2018

NOTE 1. INCORPORATION, ACTIVITIES AND LEGAL SYSTEM OF THE PARENT
COMPANY

a) Incorporation and registered Office of the Parent Company

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S. A. (hereinafter "the Company”), was
incorporated in Lleida on 30 Janvary 1995, On October 7,2017, the Company approved the
change of its registered office localed in General Lacy, number 42, Planta Baja - Local 1,
Madrid. In the previous year its registered office was located in the Pare Cientific i Tecnologic
Agroalimentari de Lleida, Edificio H1, Planta 2, in Lleida.

On June 30,2011, the General Shareholders' Meeting resolved the transformation from a
Limited Company to a Public Limited Company. On December 12,2011, the agreement reached
at the aforementioned meeting was submitted to the Mercantile Registry on February 17,2012,

b) Activity of the Parent Company

[ts activity consisls in acting as a teleoperator for short message management services (SMS)
over the Internet, as well as any other activity related to the aforementioned corporate purpose.

¢) Activities of the Group Companies

Main activity of the subsidiaries consist in the provision of telecommunications services, the
development of programs, the sending of text messages and electronic mail. and the provision
of study services and analysis of computer processes in general.

d) Legal System of the Parent Company

Parent Company is governed by its Articles of Association and by the current Corporate
Enterprises Act.

¢) Quotation in the Alternative Stock Market

On June 1%, 2015, the Parent Company approved at the Sharcholders’ Meeting the request for
incorporation into the Alternative Stock Marlet of all the shares of the Parent Company.
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On October Tth, 2015, the Board of Directors of Baolsas y Mercados Espafioles, Sistemas de
Negociacion, S.A., approved the incorporation of 16.049.943 shares of 0,02 euros nominal
value each into the segment of companies in expansion of the Alternative Stock Market,
effective as of October 9, 2015, The Parent Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
Asesores de Negocios, 5.L. and as Liquidity Provider to BEKA Finance, S.V., 5.A. On
November 7, 2015, the Parent Company changed its Registered Advisor, appointing GVC
GAESCO VALORES 8V, S.A. On December 19, 2018, the Company was listed on Euronext
Growth Paris under the dual listing system, with Invest Securifies being the Listing Sponsor.

1.1) Group Companies

The Parent Company holds, directly, investments in different national and international
companies, and controls, directly, these companies. On January 1%, 2016 the first consolidation
of the Group Companies was carried out.

Group Companies included in the Consolidation Perimeter

The breakdown of the Group Companies included in the consolidation perimeter as of
December 31, 2018 is the following:

| TPercentage. Applied Method of ©
, o ~of Holding ‘Consalidation
Group Licidanetworks Serveis Telemadies, S.A.

which maintains the following investments:

Lisidanetworks Serveis Telematics. LTD | Cilobal Integration
Ligidanet LISA Inc T Gilobal Integration
Lleidanet Honduras, 5A 0% Global Integration
Lieidanet Dominicana, SRL Q9.98% Cilobal Integration
Lieida SAS 100% Global Integration
Lieida Chile SFA LN Gilobal Integration
Licidanet do Brasii Lida O 099, Cilobal Integration
Lieidanat Guatemala B0 Global Inlegration
Portabilidades Espafiolas, 8.4 100%: Cilobal Integration
Lleidanet Costa Rica 100%: Global Integration
Lleidanet Peri 100% Global Integration
Llgidanct India 23% Eguity Method

The financial year of the Parent Company and the Subsidiaries begins on 1st of January and
ends on 31st of December of each year. The last Annual Accounts of the Parent Company and
its Subsidiaries drawn up correspond to the financial year ended on December 31, 2018.

Detail of activities and registered office of the Subsidiaries included in the perimeter of
consolidation as of December 31, 2018, is indicated below:

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, LTD

Incorporated on December 28, 2005 in Dublin, with its registered office in Birchin Court 20,
Birchin Lane London (United Kingdom). Its main aetivity is as operator.
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Lleidanet USA Inc.

Incorporated on May 12, 2009 and its registered office is at 2719 Hollywood Boulevard Street
21 FL33020, Hollywood. Its main activity is as operator. On June 30, 2013 a capital increase
was made in Lleidanet USA Inc. for 397.515,00 euros which TLleidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, 5.A. subscribed in entirely.

Lleidanct Honduras, S.A.

Its registered office in Teguecigalpa (Honduras), it was incorporated on January 11, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 175 shares out of a total amount of 250
that were issued. Its main activity consists on being SMS operator, based on an interconnection
network with the fixed and mobile operations of the Republic of Honduras.

Lleidanet Dominicana, S.R.L.

Headquartered in Santo Dominge (Dominican Republic), was incorporated on June 26, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4.999 shares of a total of 5.000 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems.

Lleida SAS

With its registered office in Bogota (Colombia), it was incorporated on November 16, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, 5.A., 100 shares out of a total of 100 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems. On 15 June 2018,
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. fully subscribed a capital increase in Lleida SAS
amounting to 95.802 euros.

Lleida Chile SPA

With its registered office in Santiago (Chile), it was incorporated on March 12, 2013,
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, SA, 200 shares out of a total of 200 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunications services.

Lleida Networlss India Private Limited

With its registered office in New Delhi (India), it was incorporated on January 7, 2013
subseribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 12,500 shares out of a total of 50,000
that were issued, Its main activity is the creation of a telecommunications operator in India, as
well as offering VAS services, including SMS, MMS, and UMS and other types of messaging

Lleidanet do Brasil Ltda

With its registered office in Sao Paulo (Brazil), it was incorporated on October 2, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematies, S.A., 329 shares out of a total of 330 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the provision of telecommunication services, program
development, sending of text messages and electronic mail and the provision of services of
study and analysis of computer processes in general.
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Lleidanet Guatemala. Sociedad Andnima

With its registered office in Guatemala (Guatemala), it was incorporated on November 7, 2013
subseribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4,800 shares out of a total of 6,000
issued. Its main activity is the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging services (SMS and MMS),
carriers, etc,, the creation, generation and exploitation of information and communication
technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these matters.

Portabilidades Espafiolas, S.A.

Incorporated on December 4, 2015, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematicos S.A., represenling
100% of the share capital of 3,000 shares for a total value of euros 3,000. Its corporate purpose
i the commercialization of services based on numerical portability data to telecommunications
aperators for the routing of telephone traffic and short text messages,

Lleidanet Costa Rica Empresa Individual de Responsabilidad Limitada

On March 31, 2016, the Parent acquires I). Francisco José Sapena Soler 100% of this Company
for the amount of 16.06 euros. Its main activity is the provision, organization and
commetrcialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulling and advisory services on these
matlers.

Lleidanet Pern

On August 25, 2016, the Parent Company made a contribution of 268.09 euros for the
incorporation of said company. Its main aclivity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these
matters.

NOTE 2. PRESENTATION BASIS OF INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

) True and Fair View

The accompanying Consolidated Annual Accounts for the yvear 2018 were prepared with the
accounting records of the different constituent companies of the Group, whose respective
annual statements were prepared in accordance with the applicable commercial law currently
in force and according to the General Accounting Plan approved by Spanish Royal Decree
1514/2007, 16 of November, in the case of Spanish companies, and in accordance with the
applicable legislation in the other countries in which the companies that are part of the
Consolidated Group are localed, and are submitted as provided by the Royal Decree 1159/2010
of 17 September, s0 as to provide a true and fair view of the net worth, financial situation,
results and accuracy of the cash flows included in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.
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b) Presentation Currency

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations on accounting, the Consolidated Annual
Accounts are expressed in euros.

¢) Critical Aspects of Uncertainties Valuation and Estimation

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Parent's Board of
Directors used estimates to measure certain of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
recorded therein. The estimates and criteria basically refer to the evaluation of the going
concern principle, given that the Group has historically presented negative working capital and
given the degree of indebtedness of the Group at year-end, which represents 42% of its
liabilities (46% in 2017), it is necessary for the Group to comply with its business plan, as well
as to obtain new financing through new loans and renewal of credit facilities, During 2018 and
2019, up to the date of preparation of these financial statements, the Group is generating
positive cash flows and policies are being renewed. The net financial debt has gone from 2.410
thousand Euros in 2017 to 1.901 thousand Euros in 2018, it means a decrease of 21% in one
fiscal year.

Except as mentioned in the preceding paragraph, there are no uncertainties or aspects of the
future that could entail a significant risk that could lead to significant changes in the value of
the assets and liabilities in the following year, except for those relating to the nature of the
business:

- Slower growth than expected in the Business Plan: slower maturation in same countries,
- Reasonability of the activation and recoverability of research projects.
- Highly atomised and competitive market at local level.

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at the close
of fiscal year 2018, it is possible that events that may take place in the future will male it
necessary to modify them (upwards or downwards) in coming years, which would be done
prospectively, recognising the effeets of the change in estimate in the corresponding
consolidated income statement,

d) Comparison of the Information

The directors present, for comparison purposes, with each of the items in the consolidated balance
sheet, the consolidated profit and loss aceount, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear, in addition to the figures for 2018 those
corresponding to the previous year. The items for both years are comparable and homogeneous.

¢) Changes in Accounting Standards

As indicated in the foregoing section, this is the first year in which the Group veluntarily
prepares consolidated financial statements, and therefore no changes in its own accounting
policies have been made and no related adjustments are included as a result of errors.
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{) Responsibility for the Information given and the Estimates made

For the preparation of the Consolidated Annual Accounts estimates have been used in order to
value some of the assets, liabilities, incomes, expenses and compromises that are registered,
and that, basically, these estimations are referred to the evaluation of losses by impairment of
certain assets, the useful life of non-current assets and the probability of occurrence of
provisions.

Notwithstanding that these estimates were made according to the best information available at
the time of the preparation of these Consolidated Annual Accounts, il is possible that future
events may occur that require their amendment for the next financial years; which would be
carried out prospectively, taking account of the effects of the estimate change on the
corresponding profit and loss accounts.

NOTE 3. RECOGNITION AND VALUATION STANDARDS

The principal valuation standards used by the Group in the drafting of its Consolidated Annual
Accounts, in accordance with those established by the General Accounting Plan, were as
follows:

a) Consolidation Principles

The consolidation of the Annual Accounts of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, 5. A. with the
Annual Accounts of its investee companies mentioned in Notes 1.1 and 2, was carried out using
the following methods:

1. Application of the global integration method for all Group companies, i.e. those over which
it as effective control.

2. Application of the equity method as equivalence for associated companies, i.e. those over
which a notable influence is exercised in terms of management but in which there is no
majority vote or joint management with third parties.

The consolidation of the operations of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemitics, 5.A. with those of
the aforementioned subsidiaries was performed according to the following basic principles:

- The criteria used in formulation of the Balance Sheets, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash-Flow Statements for each one of the consolidated
companies are, generally, and in their basic aspects, homogenous.

- The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
include all adjustments and eliminations of the consolidation process, as well as relevant
valuation homogenizations to reconcile balances and transactions between the consolidating
companies.

- DBalances and transactions between consolidated companies were eliminated in the
consolidation process. The credits and debts with group, affiliated and associated companies
which have been excluded from the consolidation are presented in the corresponding
headings of the assets and liabilities headings of the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
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- The deletion of Subsidiary equity investment was conducted by compensating the
shareholding of the Parent Company with the proportional part of the net equity of the
subsidiaries which is represented by the shareholding on the date of the first consolidation.
The first consolidation differences were treated as follows:

a) Positive differences which cannot be allocated to the equity elements of the Subsidiaries
wete included in the "Consolidation Goodwill" heading of the Consolidated Balance
Sheel. The impairment losses must be recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss
Account and are irreversible

b) Negative differences, obtained as first consolidation, are recognized as reserves for the
year considering that the group already existed previously in the different subgroups
contributed to the Parent Company.

- The consolidated income for the financial year shows the part that may be attributed to the
Parent Company, comptised of the income obtained by the latter plus the corresponding
part, by virtue of the financial sharcholding, of the income obtained by the invested

companies

The shareholding value of the minority interests in the equity and the attribution of income
in the consolidated subsidiaries is presented in the “Minority Interest” heading of the Equity
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The value breakdown of these shareholdings is presented
in Note 4.

b) Intangible Fixed Assets

Assets included in intangible fixed assets are valued by their cost, whether purchase price or
production cost, reduced by the corresponding accumulated amortization and losses from any
impairment which, where appropriate, has occurred,

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its usetul
life. The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and Development Costs

Capitalized research and development costs are specifically individualized for projects and their
costs are clearly established so they can be spread over time. Similarly, Management the Group
has substantial grounds for expecting the technical success and the financial and commereial
profitability of these projects

Research and development costs that appear as assets are amorlized on a straight-line basis over
their useful life, at an annual rate of 20%, and always within a period of 5 years.

As soon as there are reasonable doubts over the technical success or financial and commercial
profitability of a project, the values recorded in the asset that apply to it are directly allocated
to the financial year's losses.

Computer Applications

Licenses for computer applications purchased from third parties are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred for purchasing.
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Computer applications are amortized on a straight-line basis throughout their useful lives, at an
annual rate of 33%.

Maintenance expenses for computer applications incurred during the financial year are
recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

Industrial Property

Corresponds to the capitalized development expenses for which the relevant patent or similar
has been obtained, and includes the repistration and formalization costs for the industrial
property, as well as the costs for purchasing the corresponding rights from third parties.

During all these years, the Group has been able to develop methods and unique technologies in
its sector by continuous investment in research and development, The resull of this effort has
been the publication of patents at European, American and PCT levels, putting in value the
effort developed during these last years. These patents allow the Group to license this
technology to third parties and protect it against possible copies of other actors in the sector,
less scrupulous when creating original models.

¢) Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are valued by their acquisition price or production cosl, net of the
corresponding accumulated amortization and, where appropriate, of the accumulated value of
the recognized allowances for impairment.

Repair and maintenance expenses incurred during the financial year are debifed in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. Costs for renovating, extending or improving intangible
fixed assets, representing an increase in capacity, productivity or lengthening of useful life, are
capitalized as a higher value of the corresponding assets, once the book values of the replaced
items have been de-recognized,

Tangible fixed assets, net of their residual value, where appropriate, are amortized by a straight-
ling-basis distribution of the various items that constitute these fixed assets over the years of
estimated useful life making up the period in which the Group hopes to use them, according to
the following table:

Annual Tstimated Ycurs of |
Percentage Useful Life

Buildings 2,50 40

Technical facilities 8- 10 12,50- 10
Machinery 20-25 5-4

Other installations 10 10

Furniture I0-15 10— 6,67
Computer equipment 25-50 4-2

Other tangible fixed assets 15 .67

The book value of a tanpible fixed-asset item is de-recognized in the accounts through its
alienation or disposal by other means; or where no future economic benefits or profits are
expected to be obtained for its use, alienation or disposal by other means.
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The loss or profit resulling from writing-ofl" a tangible fixed-asset item is determined as the
difference between the net values, where appropriate, of the sales costs resulting from its
alienation or disposal by other means, where available, and the item's book value, and is
allocated to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which this
ooCurs,

At the financial year's closure, the Group, assesses whether there are signs of impairment in a
tangible fixed-asset item or any cash-generating unit, in which case the recoverable amounts
are estimated and the necessary allowances are made.

An impairment loss is deemed to have ocewrred in a tangible fixed-asset item where its book
value exceeds its recoverable value, this being understood as the higher value between its fair
value less the sales costs and its value in use.

Allowances for impairment in the tangible fixed-asset items, as well as their reversals where
the circumstances producing them cease, are recognized as an expense or income respectively

in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

d) Leases and Other Transactions of a Similar Nature

Operating-lease expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the Consolidated
Profit and Loss Account.

¢} Financial Instruments

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets on their initial recognition and,
where permitted and appropriate, this classification is re-assessed on each closing of the
consolidated balance sheet.

Financial instruments, for the purposes of their valuation, are classified in any of the
following categories:

Loans and Receivable Items and Debts and Payable Items

Loans and Receivable Items

The following are classified under this category:

a) Trade credits; financial assets arising from the sale of assets and the provision of services
for commercial transactions, and

b) Non trade credits: financial assets which, being neither equity instruments nor derivatives,
have no commercial origing, whose payments are for a fixed or determinable amount, and
which are not traded in an active market. They do not include those financial assets for
which the Group cannol recover substantially all the initial investments, owing to
circumstances unrelated to credit impairment. The latter are classified as available for sale.
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Debts and Payable Items

The following are classified under this catepory:

a) Trade debts: financial debts arising from the purchase of assets and services through
commercial transactions, and

b} Non trade debts: financial liabilities which, not being derivate instruments, have no
comumercial origins.

Initially, financial assets and liabilities included in this category are valued by their fair value,
which is the price of the transaction and which is equivalent to the fair value of the consideration
paid plus the transaction costs which are directly attributable to it

Notwithstanding whal is stated in the above paragraph, loans and debts through commercial
lransactions with a maturity not greater than one year and which do not have a contractual rate
of interest, as well as, where appropriate, advances and loans made to staff, receivable dividends
and called payments on equity instruments, the amounts for which are expected to be received
in the short term, and payments called by third parties on holdings, the amounts for which are
expected to be paid in the short term, are valued by their nominal value where the effect of not
updating the cash flows is of no significance.

In subsequent valuations, both assets and liabilities are valued by their amortized cost. Accrued
interest is recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account by applying the effective
interest rate method. Notwithstanding the above, loans and debts with a maturity no greater
than one year which are initially valued by their nominal value, remain valued by this amount
unless, in the case of loans, they have been impaired.

At the year end, the necessary allowances are made where there is objective evidence of value
of a credit having been impaired, i.e. where there is evidence of a reduction or delay in estimated
future cash flows corresponding to that asset.

An impairment loss in the value of loans and receivable sums corresponds to the difference
between their book value and the current value of the estimated future cash flows to be

generated, deducted at the effective interest calculated on their initial recognition.

Allowance for impairment of debts as of December 31, 2018, has been estimated on the basis
of the analysis made on each of the individualized outstanding receivables on that date.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset, or part of it, is de-recognized where the contractual rights over the cash flows
of the financial asset have expired or been assigned, and the risks and benefits attaching to its
ownership have been substantially transferred.

De-recognition of Vinancial Liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized where the corresponding obligation ceases.
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Interest Received from Financial Assets

Interest from financial assets acerued subsequent to their purchase are recognized as income in
the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account,

Interests are recognized by using the effective interest rate method. For these purposes in the
initial valuation of the financial assets, both the value of the explicit interest, accrued and non-
matured at that time, and the value of the dividends agreed to by the competent body on
acquisition, are recognized independently, bearing in mind their maturity,

Guarantees Given

Guarantecs given and received through operating leases and provision of service are valued by
the amount paid out and received respectively.

f) Transactions in Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized by their exchange value in Euros, by using
the spot exchange-rate for the dates on which they occur.

On the close of each financial year, monetary items are valued by applying the average spot
exchange-rate on that date. Exchange differences, both positive and negative, which result from
this process, as well as those generated on selling off equity items. are recognized in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which they arise.

g) Profit Tax

Profit tax is recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the
Consolidated Equity depending on where the gains or losses giving rise to if are recognized.
Profit tax for each financial year includes both current and deferred taxes, where appropriate.

The current tax amount is the sum to be paid by the companies as a result of the assessment
notices for the tax,

Differences between the book value of assets and liabilities, and their tax base, generale the
deferred tax asset or liability tax balances which are calculated using the expected tax rates at
the time of their reversal, and under the method in which it can be reasonably expected to
recover or pay the asset or liability.

Variations arising during the financial year in deferred tax asset or liability are recognized either
in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the Consolidated Equity, as
appropriate.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized insofar as it is probable that the company will have
future tax gains that allow these assets to be applied.

In each closing balance sheet the book value of the recognized deferred tax assets is analyzed
and the necessary adjustments are made insofar as there are doubts over their future tax
recoverabilily, Likewise, in each closing non-recognized deferred taxes are assessed in the
balance sheet and these are subject to recognition to the extent that their recovery with future
tax benefits is probable.
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h) Income and Expenses

Income and expenses are allocated according to the accrual basis, i.e. where the real flow of
goods and services occurs which these represent, irrespective of when the monetary or
financial flow deriving from them occurs.

Income resulting from the sale of goods and provision of services is valued by the fair value of
the consideration, received or to be received, that derives from these, which, unless there is
evidence {o the contrary, is the agreed price for these goods or services, less the amount of any
discount, reduction or other similar items, as well as the interest incorporated into the face value
of the credits,

Income {rom services is recognized when the result of the transaction can be estimated reliably,
considering the pereentage of completion of the service at the year-end date. Consequently,
only income from the provision of services is accounted for when all and each of the following
conditions:

a)  The amount of the income can be reliably valued.

b) It is probable that the Group receives financial benefits or profils arising from the
transaction.

¢}  The extent of the transaction carried out, on the date of closure of the financial year, can
be reliably valued, and

d)  The costs already incurred in the service's provision, as well as those that are yet to be
incurred up to its completion, can be reliably valued.

i) Provisions and Contingencics

Debentures existing at the close of the financial year, resulting from past events which may
ogcasion loss in equity for the Group, and whose value and time of cancellation are
indeterminate, are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as provisions and are valued
by the current value of the best possible estimate for the amount necessary to cancel the
obligation or transfer it to a third party,

i) Grants, Donations and Legacies

Non-refundable capital grants, as well as donations and legacies, are valued by the fair value of
the amount granted or of the goods received. They are initially allocated directly as income in
the Consolidated equity and recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account in
proportion to the amortization undergone over the period by the assets financed through these
grants, unless these are non-depreciable assets, in which case they will be allocated to the
earnings of the financial year in which their alienation or de-recognition takes place.

Grants intended for cancelling debts are allocated as income for the financial year in which the
cancellation oceurs, unless they are received for a specific financing, in which case the
allocation is made according to the item that is financed.
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Refundable grants are recognized as long-term debt convertible into subsidies until they become
non-refundable.

Operation grants are credited to the earnings of the financial year when they accrue.

k) Related-Party Transactions

In general, items forming the subject matter of a related-party transaction are initially
recognized by their fair value. The subsequent valuation is made in accordance with the
provisions laid down in the corresponding regulations.

I) Cash-Flow Statements

Cash-flow statements use the following expressions according to the meanings given below:

Cash and Equivalents: Cash is both cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are
financial instruments forming part of the Group’s normal cash management, are convertible
into cash, have initial maturities no greater than three months and are subject to little significant
risk of change in their value.

Cash Stream-flows: inflows and outflows of cash or other equivalent resources, with the latter
being understood as investments having terms under three months, high liquidity and low risk
of changes in value.

Operating Activities: these are the activities that make up the principal source of the Group’s
ordinary income, as well as other activities that cannotl be classified under investment or
financing.

Investment Aclivities: acquisition, alienation or disposal by other means of long-term assets
and other investments not included in cash or cash equivalents.

Financing Activities: activities that lead to changes in the size and composition of the equity
and financial liabilities.

NOTE 4. MINORITY INTEREST

The breakdown of the value of minority interests in the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries
as the end of the financial year 2018, is as follows, in Euros:

Peveentage of |
minurity inferests

. shareholilers : : L TatalMinority
‘Group Company. N ~ (holdings) Lty Oihers Period vesults.  lnterests.
Lleidanet Goatemaln 20%% 4,037 42 {613,447 = G B0
Lleidonet Honduras 30 - - - -
Lieidanet Brasil 00% (8.927.94) 1 19,60 (E1.633,16) (2,25)
LLzidangt Repiblica Dominicann 0.02% {2,066, 78) |.524.69 (B.602.31) (183

040,72
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The breakdown of the value of minerity interests in the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries
as the end of the financial year 2017, is as follows, in Euros:

L Group Company

Lleidanel Guatemala

Llgidanel Honduras

Lleidansl Bragil

[Leidanet Repiblica Dominicana

Percentage of

minority
interests

“shareholders:

(holdings)

20%
0%
(01 %
0,02%

Equity
4,035,440

288483
G984, 57

NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Oitheis Feriod vesults

(390.71) -
(131749 (1L8L21T)

1.976,20 (2.051.25)

“Total Minority |
Sinfsrats

Gaf,75

(1,02)
(0.02)

687,71

The details and changes in intangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2018 were as

follows, in euros:

Cost:

Research

Indusirial Property

Compuler applications

Advances for intangible fixed assets

Acvcnmulated amortization:
Research

Industrind Propery
Computer applications

Intangible Fixed Assots, Ned

0,341.242,16
38R.550,99
221.657,90
5630889

10.607.819,94
(6.514.100,47)
(65.531,01)
(180.680,96)
(6.760.312,44)

3.847.507,50

Additiony

TRE.636,39

4.979,23
226.651,89

L018,267,51
(10850, 1)
(98.753,99)
(14.418.53)

(1.024.062,62)

{5.795,11)

De-Recognition  Transfers:
- 309.49573

- {309.495,73)

/1202018

IL127.878,55
B9E.046, T2
226.637,13
57352505

1162608745
{7.424.990.57)
(164.285,00)
(195,089 40y
(7.784.375,06)

JEN.TIZEY

The details and changes in intangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2017 were as

tollows, in euros:

Cost:

Kezearch

Tndusivial Property

Computer applications

Advances for intangible fixed assets

Acenmulated amortization:
Research

Industrial Property
Computer applications

Intangible Fixed Assets, Net

2016

B.492.284.57
| B2.966,60
[ B0.706,33
57167217

9.433.629.67
(5.594.085,56)
(27,344,534}
(170.663,60)
(5.792.093,90)

3.641.535,77

Additions

84895759

40.951,57
284.281,11

LI74.190.27
(920,014,510
(30, 1B6,.6T)
(10017.360)
(Ia8.218,54)
20597173

DeReécopnitlon.  Transfers

- 199,584 35
- [199.584,3%)

el I e 1

9.341.242.16
IR8.550,909
221.06537.90
656,368,809

TH60T.519,9:4
(6.514.100,47)
(65,331,01)
{180.680,56%
(6.760.312 44}

JH47.507 50
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Fully-amortized and in-use items

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, is the following, stating their cost values in Euros:

3i/122m8 31/12/2017
Research 5.472.949.24 4.786.791,68
Patents 26.783,16 1.376,84
Computer applications 167.566,20 167.566.20

5.667.298,60 4.955,734,72

NOTE 6. TANGIBLE ASSETS

The details and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2018 were as
follows, in eurns:

| 31202017 Additions  De-Recognition  31/12/2018

Cost:

Land and buildings 172.228.55 2495719 - 197.185,74

Technical installations -

and machinery 258.126,00 - 238.126,00

Other installations, -

tools and furniture T9.150,73 20.112,50 09.263,23

Data processing equipment 3B2.133,66 J36.836,81 - 418.970.47

Other tangible fixed assels 3.087,87 1.847.92 - 4,935,779

§94.726,81 83.754.42 - D78.481,23

Accumulated amortization:

Land and buildings (25.90134) (5.067.29) - {33.968,63)

Technical installations -

and machinery (184.466,49) (20.553 407 (205.019.89)

Cither installations, -

tools and furniture (45.553,76) (9.353,7%) (54.907,55)

Drata processing equipment (244 899 B8) (92,799 84) - {337.699,72)

Orther tangible fixed assets (308787 {282,73) - (3.370,60)
(506,909,34) (128.057,05) - (634.966,39)

Tangible Fixed Assets, Net 38781747 (44.302,63) =~ 343.514.84
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The details and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2017 were as

follows, in euros:

Cosi:

Land and buildings

Technical installations and machinery
Other installations, teols and forniture
Data processing equipment

Other tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets under construction

Accumulated amortization:

Land and buildings

Technical installations and machinery
Other installations, toels and furniture
Data processing equipment

Other tangible fixed assets

Tangible Fixed Assets, Net

Fullyv-Amortized and in-Use Ttems

/1272016

172.228,55
258.126,00
79.150,73
271.069.30
3.087,87
7805100

861,71345
(24.595,63)
(164.510,72)
(38.197,68)
(168.731,64)
(2.645,84)
(398.681,51)

463.031,%4

‘Additions

33.013.36

33.013,36

(4.305,71)
(19.955,77)
(7.356,08)
(76.168,24)
(442,03)

(108.227,83)

(75.214,47)

Others
movements:

TEO51,00

(72.051,00%

22017

172,228,585
258.126,00
79.150,73
382, 133,66
3.087.87

B94.726,81

(28.901,34)
(184.466,49)
(45,553,76)
(244,899, 88)
(3.087,87)

(506.909,34)

387.817.47

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, is shown below stating their cost values in Euros:

Technical installations and machinery

Diata processing equipment

31272018

43.468,70
148.061 .46

191.530,16

311212017 '

43.468,70
129.448.92

172.917,62

NOTE 7. LEASES AND OTHER OPERATIONS OF SIMILAR NATURE

7.1) Finanecial Leases (the Company as Lessce)

The Company has the following assets financed though financial lease agreements as of
December 31, 2018, in euros:

Fair Valueofthe — Due Signature  Ouistanding
Value purchase option Date date dies
Computer equipment 079812 1.707,27 D4/04/2021 04/05/2017 4843390
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The following is the total amount of future payments in financial leases at the end of the
financial year is the following:

il yeir
2018
Tatal amount of minimum future
payments at the close of the year 47,803,506
(-} Non-accrued financial expenses (1.066,93)
Walue of the purchase option 707,27
Current value at the close of the year 48.443,90

7.2) Operating Leases (the Company as Lessee)

The amount of the contingent payments recognized as an expense in the year 2018 is 290.567,12
euros (330.886,92 euros in the previous year).

The following is the breakdown of the total amount of the minimum future payments
corresponding to the non-cancellable operating leases:

2018 2007
Upto 1 vear 254.733,36 298.328,98
Between | and 5 years 149.266,52 [ 60.606,02
More of 5 years 15224220 | 70.685,80
556.242,08 629.630,80

NOTE 8, FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following is the breakdown of the long-term financial assets, in Euros:

Créditsand  Credits'and
LEquity -~ Fguity ~ Others Others
instruments.  Instruments:  Financial Assets Financial Assets|
31/12/2018 3122017 afizi2018 Mh2i017 |
Loans and receivable items (Note 8.2) - 34.851,15 35,742,604

Financial nssets available for sale (Mote 8.3} 154.077.40 154007740

15407740 15407740 34.851,15 35,742,64

The breakdown of the short-term financial assets, is as follows, in euros:

Credits and Others ‘Credits and Others

Financial Assets Financial Assets
| 311122018 3zizon
Assets at fair value through the profit and loss: 1.127.282.85 529.998,13
Cash or other liquid assets {Mote 8,1) 112728285 32000813
Loans and receivable items (Note 8.2) 298497739 3,228.243,16

Tatal 4.112.260,24 3.758.241,29
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8.1) Assets at Fair Value through the Profit and Loss

Cash and other Lquivalent Liquid Assels

The detail of this assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows, in euros:

Current Accounts
Cash

Total

8.2) Loans and Receivable [tems

31/12/2018

L118.51546
167,37

1.127.282,85

Balance at

311202017

520.079,17
9.918.96

519.998,13

The composition of loans and receivable items as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

Loans and receivables items for
commercial transactions

Costumers
[Debrors

Total loans and receivables items for

commercial transactions

Livans and receivables for
non-gommercinl tranzactions

Staff
Shori-lerm deposits (*)
Securities and deposzits

Total loans and recelvables for
non-commercinl transactions

Tuotal

Balance at 31/12/2018

Long-Tetm Shori=Term
- 2.198.612,84

- 79.078,65

- 2:277.691,49

- 4.280,40

- 73.005,50

34.851,15 =
14.851,15 707.285,90
34.851,15 2.984.977,39

Balance at 31/12/2017
Short-Term |

Long-Term

3574264

35,742,064

35.742;64

) Short-tern deposits have g maturlly to short-term and poorte o market intevest rate,

2172.207,60
3854392

2.211.201,52

4.625,00

LO12.416,64

1.017.041,64

3.228.243,16

Trade and other receivables include impairments due to insolvency risks, as detailed below:

Acenmulated impairment January 1, 2017

Impairment losses on irade receivables

Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2017

Impairment losses on trade receivables

Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2018

Amount
488.016.83
66.349.94

554.966,77

554.966,77
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8.3) Financial Asseis available for Sale

Correspond to two investments made for the Group in the past year in:

a) E.Kuantia: financial institution specialized in the issuance of means of payment and
electronic money. The investment amounts to 143,880 euros and corresponds to 2% of the

share capital.

b) IBAN Wallet: global platform, linking investors and loan applicants, with high rates for
both. The investment amounts to 10,197,4( euros and corresponds to 0.38% of the share

capital.

NOTE 9. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Detail of long-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in euros:

Debts with eredii o :
Cinstitutions Others liahilities Total

I1/12/2018 3122017 314272018 317122017 31422018 31/12/2017

Debits and payable items
(Note 9.1) LISS619.06  LOTL74065 21796209 TL2B5,72 137358125 114202635

Detail of short-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in euros:

Debts with eredit Others
institutions i linhilitles Total

32018 32017 30022018 32017 8220180 3TA2R017

Debits and payable
items {Mote 9.1) 227283576 275205943  L932320,32  LTITH60,96 4.205.156,08 4.489.920,30
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9.1) Debits and Payable ltems

The breakdown as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows, in euros:

For commercial transactions:
Suppliers

Creditors

Advances from costumers

Total balances for
commercial iransactions

For non-commercial operations:
Drebts with credit institutions
Other financial Habilities

Other debts

Debits and payable ilems

Staff (remuneration payable)

Total balances for
non-commercial operations

Total debts and payable items

— 23

Balance as of 31/12/2018 Balance as of 31/12/2007
Long-Term  Short-Termy  Long-Term  Short-Term
- 1.446,569,02 - 1.125.581,58
= 212.433,28 - 373.877,19
= 188.622,38 = 178.843 85
- 1.847.624,68 - 1L.678.302,62
1.126.973,02 225303800  1.023.296,73  2.732.604.86
28.646,14 19,797,76 48.443,90 19,454,57
217.962,09 72.680,91 71.285,72 57.505,21
1.373.581,25  2.345.516,67  1.143.026,35  2.809.564,64
= 12.014,73 = 2,053,13
1,373.581,25  2.357.531,40 1.143.026,35  2.81L.617,77
1,373.581,25  4.205.156,08  1.143.026,35  4,489.920,39

9.1.1) Debts with credit institutions

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions as of December 31, 2018 is as follows, in euros:

Credit policies
Loans

Leasings
Discounted effects

A Short-Term.

1.325.7890,09
7T0.761,21
19.797,76
152.486,70

2.272.835,76

A Long-Term Total
= 1.329.790,09
1.126.973,02 1.897.734,23
28.646,14 48.443,90

= 152.486,70

1.155.619,16 3.428,454,92

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions at December 31, 2017 is as follows, in euros;

Credit policies
Loans

Leasings
Discounted effects

A Short-Term

[.342.318.02
|.064,033,12
19.454,57
326253,72

2.752.05%9.43

A Long-Term Total
: 1.342.318,02
1.023.296,73 2.087.329.85
48.443,90 67.898.47
= 326,253.72
1.071.740,63 J.HII.HHU,HE
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Loans

The detail of the bank loans as of December 31, 2018, expressed in Euros, is the following:

I Last  Initial Pending
Company “maturity. amount ~closing .
Loan 21 12/03/2019 300,000,00 16,049,12
Loan 22 0871062019 250.000,00 5421479
Loan 24 (%) 15/10/2025 78.375.60 73.411,60
Loan 28 1441202019 300.000,00 77.300,86
Loan 29 25/02/2020 250,000,001 60.987.90
Loan 30 30/06/2020 150.000,00 55.003,72
Loan 31 1441202020 465.000,00 192.198.58
Loan 32 3171242020 287.619,11 118.930,40
Loan 34 I103/2019 350,000,00 38,888,90
Loan 35 29/00/2019 500.000,00 86.414,22
Loan 36 02/11/2022 300,000,00 238.697.25
Loan 37 01/03/2022 150.000,00 121.875,00
Loan 38 18/06/2023 195.000,00 176.390,56
Loan 39 02/07/2023 200.000,00 184.362.33
Loan 40) 28/12/2023 400.000,00 400.000,00
4.175.994,71 1,597.734.23

{1 corvesponds to o loan granted by the COTI

The detail of the bank loans as of December 31, 2017, expressed in Euros, is the following:

Last Tnifial Pending.

Company miturity amount. elusing
Loan 14 16242018 300,000,000 117,800,806
Laoan 16 30/042018 250,000, 00 19.138.,07
Loan 17 18072018 300.000.00 3844223
Loan 18 POA0S2008 150, 000,00 31.250,00
Loan 19 01032018 0 000,00 2593871
Loan 21 f2032019 300,000,00 To4271.24
Loan 22 OB/ 102019 230, 00,00 17.384.56
Loan 24.{*) E5/10/2025 TR.375,60 TEAT5.A0
Loan 23 05/12/2018 400,000,060 | 36.408.37
Loan 27 307042018 125,000, 00 14.224.26
Loan 28 14/12/2019 300.000,00 153.090,09
Lioan 29 25022020 230,000, 00 11201723
Luoan 30 25/06/2020 150,000,040 95.489.26
Loan 31 Jebd 1 202020 465.000,00 2R5.245.54
Loan 32 3122020 28761911 176.715.34
Loan 34 JN0AA019 350.000,00 155.535,60
Loan 35 2092015 SO0.000,00 25547933
Loan 36 0241142022 F00L000,00 295.353,56
5.055.994,71 208732985

i*) ft corresponds to a loan granted by the COTY
Credit Lines

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has credit policies granted with a total limit amounting to
1.715.000 euros (1.715.000 euros at the end of the previous year), which amount drawn at the
aforementioned date is 1.329.790,09 euros (1.342.318,02 euros at the end of the previous year).
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Lines of Effects and Import Advances

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has discount policies granted with a total limit
amounting to 650,000 euros (875.000 euros al the end of the previous year), the amount of
which is as follows to date 152.486,70 euros (326.253,72 euros at the end of the previous year).

9.1.2) Other debts

Other debts mainly comprise two loans held by the Company with the Institut Catala de
Finances (ICF). The detail of these loans at the close of fiscal years 2018 is as follows, in euros:

Last Tnitial Pending’

I Company maturity Chmount “closing
Laan | NI 20 336.737,58 T1286,08
Loan 2 250072013 FOC 000,00 211677461
636,737,098 28296369

The detail at the close of fiscal year 2017 was as follows, in euros:

KRRt Initiil Pénding
Campany maturity. | Aot : closing
Loan | 290442020 33673798 124, 750,64

9.2) Other Information related to Financial Liabilities

a) Classification by Maturity Date

The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liability financial instruments as the end of the
financial year 2018 is the following:

Aatority years |

| Mot thai s |
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 yEArs Total
Financial debts: 227283576 ATI.52555 27762444 24040160 13709510 2897247 342845492
Delstz with credit
inatitutions FASJOGR00 A51ATRAS 26902530 240401,60 13709510 ZRATTAT 3 3R0.001,02
Finapcial lepse 19.797. 76 20,147,040 49914 - - 4844390
Other debis TZH80,91  91.759.34 47.206,08 47.106,08 27.537,13 - 256.389.54
Commereind ereditors
and other payable items:  LESR639.41 - . - - = LE5063N4]
Suppliers 446, 56002 - - - - - LA46.569.02
Sundry creditors 21243328 - = - - = 212.4332%
Stafl | 88,622, 38 - - - - - [88.622 38
Advances from costumers 12.014,73 - - - - - 1201473

Total 4.205.156,08 56328489 324.830,52 28760768 16463223 2897247  5.574.483,57
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The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liability financial instruments at the close of 2017

i5 the following, in Euros:

Miaturity years:
I More (han s
2018 218 2020 “2021 2022 YEArs Total

Finaneial debis: 2.752.059.43 GO 40797 279.410,16 B3.391,37 71.359,29 2807184 3RZ3.R00,06
[3ehts with credit institutions -~ 2,732,604, 86 SEOR1021  259.7263.06 THEY223 7133920 ZEITLAY  3755.900,59
Finamcial lease 19,454 57 19.999,76  20,147,00 BA49G |4 - - a7 80847
Other debis 57.505.21 $.028,31 992831 9,928.31 9.928,31 3157248 128, 7H193
Commercial creditors

and other payable items; 1.680.355,75 - - - - - LbHI3SSTS
Suppliers 1.125.581,58 - - - - - LI25 581,58
Sunilry creditors 371387719 = - - AT3RTL19
Advances from cosmimers 17884385 - . |78 843,85
StafT 2.053,13 2,053,13
Total A8, 02), 39 G19.336,28 28033847 B3319.68 BLIRT .Gl 5074432 5.632.906,74

b) Breach of Contractual Obligations

Mo incidence has been produced in breach of the obligations relating to the loans received from
third parties.

9.3) Guarantees

The Group has contracted guarantees with a financial institution for a total amount of
350.000,00 euros, a standard instrument when signing an interconnection agreement.

NOTE 10. INFORMATION ON THE DEFERMENT OF PAYMENTS MADE TO
SUPPLIERS. THIRD ADDITIONAL PROVISION. "DUTY TO INFORM" OF LAW
15/2010, OF JULY 5

As indicated in the third additional provision. Duty to inform of Law 15/2010, of July 5
(modified by Law 31/2014), to amend Law 3/2004 of December 29, by which are established
measures to combal late payment in commercial transactions and with regard to the resolution
January 29, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Audit Statements, about the information
to include in the Notes to the Annual Accounts with regard to the average payment period to
suppliers in commercial transactions, is as follows:

Fayments made nnd pending payment |

o thie Closing Date Balance
Financlal year 2018 Tinaneial year 2017 |
Days: Days
Average pavment period Lo suppliers 34.06 37,98
Fatio paid operations 34,59 38,54
Fatio of oulstending payment [rinsactions 042 39
M R TSN Financin] ~ Financisl 1
yenr 2008 Tyear 2017
Amonny ~Amount i
Total prymients 226948573 G607.50337
Totl cutstanding payments 1L E76.34574 | 587.706,21
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NOTE 11. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE AND LEVEL OF THE RISK FROM
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Group activities are exposed lo various types of financial risk, most especially credit, liquidity
and market risks (exchange rate, interest rate and other price risks).

11.1) Credit Risk

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash balances, trade and other receivables and
investments, which represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is attributable mainly to its commercial debts. The amounts are reflected
in the net balance of provisions for bad debts, estimated by the Parent Company's management
based on the experience of previous years and its assessment of the current economic
environment.

11.2) Liguidity Risk

The general situation of financial markets, especially the banking market, has been particularly
unfavourable for credit claimants. The Group pays constant attention to the evolution of the
different factors that can help to solve liquidity crises, and especially to the sources of financing
and their characteristics.

11.3) Market Risk

The general market situation during the last years has been unfavourable due to the difficult
cconomic situation of the environment.

11.4) Exchange Rate Risk

The Group is not exposed to a significant exchange rate risk and therefore does not trade in
hedging instruments.

11.5) Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates modify the fair value of assets and liabilities bearing a fixed interest
rate as well as the future flows of assets and liabilities referenced to a variable interest rate.

The objective of interest rate risk management is to achieve a balance in the debt structure that
will minimize (he cost of debt over the multiannual horizon with a reduced volatility in the
Profit and Loss Account,
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NOTE 12, EQUITY

12.1) Share Capital of Parent Company

12.1) Share Capital

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the share capital amounts to 320.998,86 euros and is
represented by 16.049.943 registered shares of (0,02 euros nominal each, fully subscribed and
paid up. These holdings enjoy equal political and economic rights.

As of December 31, 2018, there were no companies with a direct or indirect holding equal to
or greater than 10% of the Company's share capital.

As of December 31, 2017, the company with a direct or indirect stake equal to or greater than
10% of the share capital is as follows, in euros:

| N Shares % Shares.

SESD, FCR 3.413.680 21,25

Capital Increase

By virtue of the admission to trading on the Alternative Stock Market, the Parent Company
carried out the following transactions in its share capital:

- On June 1, 2015, a General Shareholders' Meeting resolved to split the shares of the Parent
Company by reducing the par value of the shares by 6(.10 euros at a nominal value of
0,02 euros per share. In this operation, 3,005 shares were generated for each old share,
with the capital stock being formed by 11.812.655 shares with a nominal value of each
share at nominal 0,02 euros each.

- On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Shareholders' Meeting to modify the system
of representation of the shares, transforming the nominative securities representing the
shares in which the Parent Company's capital is divided into account entries.

- On June 1, 2015, it was resolved by means of a General Meeting of Shareholders to
modify the transmission regime of the shares of the Parent Company, passing this transfer
of shares to be free and not subject to consent or authorization by the Company nor by
shareholders

- On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Meeting of Shareholders to request the
incorporation in the segment of Companies in Expansion of the Alternative Stock Market
of all the shares representing the Parent Company,

- On September 30, 2015, it was apgreed to increase the Parent Company's Capital Stock by
84.745,78 euros through the issuance of 4.237.288 shares with a nominal value of 0,02
euros and an issue premium of 1,16 euros per share. This extension is fully subscribed
and disbursed.
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12.2) Reserves

The breakdown for Reserves is as follows, in euros:

31/12/2018 311242017

Legal Reserve 47.503,72 47.503,72
Voluntary Reserves 1.394.506,07 1,652,257 38
Negative resulls from previous years (3.330474,7TT) (3.623.321 52)
(1.888.464,98) (1.923.760,42)

12.3) 1ssue Premium

This reserve amounted to 5.244.344,28 euros, of which 329.090,20 curos arose as a result of
the capital increase carried out in 2007 and 4.915.254,08 curos arose as a result of the capital
increase carried out in the 2015 exercise for the departure of the Parent Company to the
Alternative Stock Market. It has the same restrictions and can be used for the same purposes as
voluntary reserves, including their conversion into share capital,

12.4) Own Shares

The Board of Shareholders of the Parent Company agreed on June 1, 2015 to authorize the
Parent Company's Board of Directors for the derivative acquisition of treasury shares under the
terms established by current legislation. These acquisitions of own shares have been made
through the liquidity provider GVC GAESCO, making available a total value of 1.200.000
euros to be able to carry out transactions of own shares, in accordance with the provisions of
the Alternative Market and are valued at acquisition cost.

As of December 31, 2018, the Parent Company holds own shares for an amount of 954.287,73
euros (935.557,23 euros in the previous year).
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NOTE 14. TAX SITUATION

The following is the breakdown of the balances with the Tax Authorities as of December 31,
2018 and December 31, 2017, in euros:

o aimpois - sunpoy
‘Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
Non-current:
Deferred Tax Assets 2,980,895 - 138,100,635 -
2.980.95 - 138.100,65 -
Current:
Value Added Tax 8794951 54,520 3] 16.159,83 15.081.92
Subsidies receivable ) 34.932,78 - 27732718 -
Income Tax retentions - 42631 38 = 41.389,85
Company Tax 112,893 14 - 29.693 .49 -
Social Security bodies 237503 55.739,44 - 44.4935,00
159.000,46 152.900,33 73.586,10 100.966,77

Tax Situation

In accordance with current legislation, tax payments cannot be considered final until they have
been inspected by the tax authorities, or until the statute barring period of four years has passed,
In consequence, for the purposes of subsequent inspections, liabilities may arise additional to
those recorded by the Group.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has open to tax inspection all the taxes to which it is
subject from the financial year 2013 to the 2018 financial year. Consequently, as a result of
possible inspections, additional liabilities could arise to those repistered by the Group.
However, the Directors of the Parent Company and its tax advisors consider that such liabilities,
if they oceur, would not be significant on the annual accounts taken as a whole,

Profit Tax

The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the year 2018 of the Parent
Company with the taxable income tax base is as follows:

Profit and Loss Account

Financial year's earnings

(After taxes) (six-months) (208.753,80)
Ifnercases Decreases Ner effect
Profit tax 135.119,70 - 135.119.70
Permanent differences 614.112,91 - Gl4.112,3
Compensation of tax loss carryforwards (540.478,81)

Taxable income (tax result) =
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The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the year 2017 of the Parent
Company with the taxable income tax base is as follows:

I Profit and Loss Account

Financial year's earnings

(After taxes) (six-months) (252.803,09)
Inereayey Decreases et effect
Profit tax - - -
Permanent differences 604.143,32 - 604.143,32
Compensation of tax loss carryforwards (351.250,23)

Taxable income {tax result) 4

The following are the calculations made with regard to the Company Tax to be paid, in Euros:

= 2018 2087
Charge at 25 % of Taxable Income . 5
Deductions - -
Net tax payable - -
Less: withholdings and payments {42 40 (6.358,22)
Tax payable {42.40) (6.358,22)

The main components of corporate income tax expense are as follows:

2018 2007
Current tax 5411,75 226,20
Deferred tax 135.119,70 -
Tatal 140.531,45 226,20

The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during the year 2018 is detailed below
in euros:

Balance at b Balanceat
d 3122017 Generated 311202018
Deferred tax assets:
Tax eredits 138, 100,65 (135.119,70) 2.980.95



Interim Consalidated Financial Statements of Gronp Lleidanetworks Sevvets Telemdtios, 8.4, and Subsiciaries
Jowihe financial pear 2018 e

The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during financial year 2017 is detailed
below in euros:

| Balance at - Balance at
. 311212016  Generafed 31/122017
Deferred tax assets:

Tax credits 138.100,65 - 138.100,65

Credits for Tax Losses Carry Forward

Part of the tax base credits have been recorded, since they comply with the requirements
established by current legislation for their recognition, and since there are no doubts about the
Company's ability to generale future taxable profits that allow their recovery. The total amount
capitalised in this connection amounts to 2.980,95 euros. The detail of the tax loss carry
forwards to be offset in future years is as follows:

Year of Origin Atnount
2016 1.330.543,36
2017 138. 100,65

1.468.644,01

Deductions Pending Application

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has the following deductions to apply:

Year of Origin Amount
2003 13.460,45
2006 T1.214,06
2007 T5.820,66
2008 201.26641
2009 172.071,08
2000 181.164.26
2011 214.961,.29
2012 251.779.01
2013 90.887,05
2004 127.371,20
2015 369.824,03
2016 188,991 46
2017 182.112,92
2018 171.929.09

2.312.852,97



Interim Consolidated Financial Statemenis of Group Leidanetworks Sevveis Telemétios, 8.4, and Subsidiaries

for the financtal year 2015

a7

NOTE 15. INCOME AND EXPENSES

a) Supplies

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros:

Consumption of merchandise
Domestics

Intra-Community Aequisitions
Imports

b) Staft expenses

The staff expenses as in the Profit and Loss Aceount are composed as follows, in euros:

Company Social Security contributions
Other welfare costs

¢) Financial Results

2018

2.852,758,70
1.917.330,74
1.565.359,28

6.335.448,72

2018

A77.065,88
108,154 .33

585.220,21

2017

2.126.479,62
802.677.56
1.709.313.29

4.638.470,87

2017

435.998,39
126.274,82

562.273.21

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros:

Financial incomes
Other fingneial incomes

Financial expenses
For debts with credit institutions

Change in fair value of financial instruments
Exchange differences
Impairments of financial assets

Financial Result Positive / (Negative)

2018

465,50
463,50

(92.120,88)
(92.120.88)

(16.789,93)
B.768,51
(16.708.41)

(116.384,21)

2017

17.688,78
I7.688,78

(131.462,99)
(131.462,99)

(95.660,11)
387,35

(209.046,97)
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NOTE 16. INFORMATION ON THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group has no assets, nor has it incurred expenses, aimed at minimizing the environmental
impact and protecting and improving the environment. There are likewise no provisions for
risks and expenses and no contingencies relaling to protection and improvement of the
environment.

NOTE 17. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

After December 31, 2018, no sipnificant events have occurred affecting the Group's Annual
Accounts at that date.

NOTE 18. CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS

The following is the breakdown for the financial year 2018 of the Consolidated Earnings in
Euros:

Tadividual Earnings Earnings .

Earnings Attributed to- Attributed to
e of the Parent - Minarity
Subsidinry Clompanies Shirveholding - Compiny Initerests
Lieidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, 5.4, (208,753,800 - (208,753,800 -
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics,
LTD (45.488,00) 100% (48.488.00) -
Llgidanet USA Ine [953,55) LHFS (953,55) .
Lleidanet Honduras, 54 - TG - -
Lleidanet Daminicans, SR (B602,310 00 08% {B.G00,50) (1,72)
Llzgida SAS 11.263,38 0% [1.263,38 -
Lleida Chile SPA - [00% - -
Llzidanet do Brasil Lida [13.633,16) U, DG (13.631,80) (1.30)
Ligidopel Guatemala - B0%% - -
Portabilidades Espafiolas, S.A. (977,23) 100%, {977,25) -
Lleidanet Costa Rica (7.64) [ %G (7.64) =
Lleidanet Pert 123,406,000 100% (23.006,00) -

(293.555,25) (3.08)

The lollowing is the breakdown for the financial year 2017 of the Consolidated Earnings in
Euros:

Individunl Earnings Earnings

Edrnifgs Attributed to. Atiributed to
Li _ofthe o _ Parent: Minority

uhsidiary Cipm panies Shareholding Compiny Interests

Llgidanetworks Serveis
Telemitics, S_A, (252.893,00) - (A53.803,00) -
Lleidanetworks Sorveis
Telematics, LTD (9.659,00) 10 (%.659,00) -
Llgidanet SA Ine {T0.678,34) 1009 {70.678,34) -
Lletdane! Honduras, SA - T - -
Llgidanet Dominicana, SRL. (9.051,35) 999885 (5,049,543 {1LE1)
Lleidy SAS (B3.435,14) 1P {83.435.14) -
Lleida Chile SPA - 1% - -
Licidanet do Brasil Lada (11.812,17) 99,00, (T1.R10,5%) (1,18)
Lleidanet Gutermala . 0% - -
Portabilidades Espaiolas, S.A. (849,823 100%: (B49,82) -
Lleidanet Costa Rien - 1005 . -
Ligidanet Per (T7.163,71) LO0%E (T7.163,71) .

(515.53963) (2,99}
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The adjustments made to the Earnings associated to Parent Company is as follows:

Individual earnings attributed to Parent Company (203.555,.25)
Consolidation adjustments:

Reversal of cradit impairment 404, 166,09
Reversal of investment impairment 177.961,60
Impairment of companies accounted for by the equity

meathod (16.708,41)
Total 271.864,03

The adjustments made to the Earnings associated to Parent Company in 2017 is as follows:

Individual earnings attributed to Parent Company (515.539,63)
Consolidation adjustments;

Detericration elimination 3T5.000,00
Tatal 59.460,37

NOTE 19. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

19.1) Balances and Transactions with the Directors of the Parent Company and Senior
Executives

The remuneration acerued during the financial year 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Parent
Company amounted to 72.000 euros (84.750 euros in the previous year),

The Senior Management tasks are performed by two members of the same Board of Directors,
with compensation for salaries and wages amounting to 219.361,07 euros (176.895,88 euros in
the previous year).

As of December 31, 2018, and 2017, there are no credits or advances with the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company, as well as commitments for pension supplements, guarantees

or guarantees pranted in its favour.

Other Information Regarding the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Capital Companies Law, it is reported that the members of the Parent Company's
Management Body do not hold interests in other companies with the same, similar or
complementary corporate purpose.

In accordance with the above-mentioned Law Capital Companies, it is also reported that the
members of the Board have carried out no activity, on their own behalf or on behalf of others,
with the Group, which may be considered to be not in accordance with normal trading and not
catried out under normal market conditions.
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NOTE 20. OTHER INFORMATION

The average number of employees during the financial year 2018, which does not differ
significantly from the number of employees at the end of the year, broken down by category
and sex, is as follows:

T » : Disability preater
Men Women Total than or equal to 33%
Senior Executives | I 2 -
Administeation . q 4 l
Commercial 5 11 16 -
Privduction 21 5 26 -
Maintenance = 2 7 -
Reception - 5 5 -
Business development 2 4 & -
Compliance - 2 2 .
Human Resources - I I -
Intellectual Property - l | -
TOTAL 20 da 65 1

The average number of employees during the financial year 2017, which does not differ
significantly from the number of employees at the end of the year, broken down by category
and sex. is as follows:

2017 |

4 Disabilify greater |

Men Women “Total thinn or equal to 339
Senior Exectlives [ | 2 =
Administration H i 4 1
Commiercial f 8 i4 »
Human Resources 17 4 21 E
Production = 7 ) z
Maintenance - 4 i -
Receplion 3 7 -
- l 1 =
TOTAL 26 29 55 |

The fees accrued for the individual and consolidated audit services in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to 21.250 eurcs (20.675 euros in the previous
year). The fee for other verification services for the limited review of the interim financial
statements amounted to 16.650 euros (14.700 euros in the previous year). In addition, the fees
accrued for other services amounted to 2.000 euros (2.060 euros in the previous year).

The Group is hereby informed that during the year it has paid the premium corresponding to
the civil liability policy that would eventually cover any damage caused to third parties by acts
or omissions related to the performance of its duties. The premium amounted to 19.107 euros
(same amount in the previous year).



fiiterim f‘ﬂmawpmd Financial Statements of Group Lieidanetworks Serveis Telemitics, $.4. and Subsidiaries )
Sfor the financial vear 2018 41

NOTE 21. SEGMEN INFORMATIOP

The distribution of the net amount of turnover corresponding to the ordinary activities of the
Group, by category and / or business segment, is shown below, in euros:

Certified electronic

communications 2.166 17% 1.763 18%
SMS Solutions 9.243 75% 7.221 72%
Data Validation 950 8% 825 9%
Other Operations . S 72 1%
Total 12,359 100% 9881 100%

The distribution of the net amount of turnover corresponding to the ordinary aclivities of the
Group, by geographic markets, is shown below, in euros:

Domestic 5973.17235  48,33% 5.459.558,03 55,25%
European Union 3.648.218,75 29,52% 2.580.077,37 26,11%
Rest of the World 2.738.142,48 22,15% 1.841.916,98 18.,64%

Total 12.359,533,58 100% 9.881.552,38 100%
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GROUP LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR

THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018

In compliance with the provisions of the Corporations Law, the directors present below the
management report for the year, in order to complement, expand and comment on the balance
sheet, the profit and loss account and the report corresponding to fiscal year 2018,

1. EVOLUTION OF RESULT AND NET TURNOVER

For the company, 2018 was a year with significant growth rates in both sales and EBITDA,

Sales have grown in the SaaS line by 17%, consolidating Lleida.net as a reference in the
contracting and notification sector, The continuous investment in R&D processes has allowed
us to expand the range of services offered, as well as to improve the existing ones. The diversity
of the range of products and the adaptability of the company to the needs of customers has
allowed it to reach new customers and develop standard products for lower volume customers.

Internally developed processes are patented globally and create entry barriers to competition,
Additionally, the Luropean homologation of electronic delivery products certified by EIDAS,
opens a range of possibilities al European level, Lleida.net being the only Spanish company

that has the homologation and the Sixth at European level,

The business line that has grown the most this year is the line of SMS solutions for Wholesale.
With a growth rate of 50%, which represents an increase of almost 2.2 million euros over the
previous year, reflects that Lleida.net has become a key player in the sector. The technology
developed internally has allowed to take advantage of business opportunities. The new
international destination routes negotiated by the team have turned Lleida.net into a reference

company within the market.

Sales by business line - Thousand of euros 2017 2008 Var. £ Var.% ]
Saas Services 2.660 3.116 4586 17%
SMS Solutions 2.827 2,668 -159 -6%
ICX WHOLESALE Solutions 4.394 B.575 2.181 50%
Total 9.881 12.359 2,478 25%
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Data in thousand of euros 2017 2018 Var. £ Var.% ]
Sales §.882 12,359 2.477 25%
Cost of sales (4.638) {6.335) 1.697 3%
Gross Margin 5.244 6.024 780 15%
Payrall (2.242) (2.443) 201 9%
External Services {2.449) {2.515) BA 3%
Other results 22 26 4 18%
Activations 849 787 {62) -7%
EBITDA 1.424 1.879 455 32%
Amortizations {1.078) (1.152) 74 %
Indemnities [77) (198) i 157%
Profit from operations 269 529 260 a7%h
Financial Net Result (114) (84) (20) - 2655
Impalrment and gains or losses on dispos: 0 (17} 17
Exchange Rate Differance (96) (16) {80) -83%
Profit before tax 59 412 353 598%

The Gross Margin has increased 15%, 780 compared to 2017, due to the increase in sales. The
gross margin on sales stands at 49% while in 2017 it was 53%. The decrease is caused by the
greater weight of Whaolesale SMS sales over total sales.

In 2018, the company made a strong effort to attract talent. The average workforce has increased
by 10 people, representing 19% over the previous year and has led to a 9% increase in cost. The
main areas reinforced were the R&D&T department with the incorporation of personnel with
higher degrees and the constitution of the compliance and Intellectual Properties departments.

External services expenses rose by 06 thousand euros this year, mainly due to the necessary
consultancy and audit costs to obtain EIDAS approval and the costs of incorporating Lleida.net
shares into trading on Euronext Growth in Paris. Additionally, an R&D collaboration
amounting to more than 100 thousand euros has been allocated.

EBITA amounted to 1.9 million euros, accounting for 15.2% of sales. deriving both from the
increase in sales and from more exhaustive cost control. Following the criterion of prudence,
the group has opted to activate a lower amount of R&D activities in order to avoid possible
fiscal contingencies, although the pace of R&D expenditure is maintained. This is the tenth
quarter that the Group has positive EBITDA.

The company's result increased by 260.000 euros, an increase of 97%.

2. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to December 31, 2018 and up to the date of preparation of this Directors' Report,
there have been no subsequent events, in addition to those already mentioned in the Notes to
the annual accounts, which highlight circumstances that already existed at 31 December 2018
and which, due to the importance of their economic impaet, should lead to adjustments in the
financial statements or modifications to the information contained in the Explanatory Notes.
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Nor are there any subsequent events, other than those already mentioned in the Explanatory
Motes, that demonstrate conditions that did notl exist at December 31, 2018 and that are of such
importance that they require additional information in the Explanatory Notes to the annual
aceounts.

3. PROBABLE EVOLUTION OF THE GROUP

The forecasts for 2019 are to increase the company's gross margin by amounts, reinforecing sales
of certified products through the consolidation of products at an international level,

4. RESEARCH ACTIVITIES

In 2018, the Company invested 787 thousand euros in research activities aimed mainly at the
company's certification line.

5. OPERATIONS WITH OWN SHARES

In accordance with the regulations of the Alternative Stock Market, the company signed a
liquidity agreement with the placing bank as part of its market launch. This agreement
establishes both the delivery of a certain amount of own shares and the deposit of an amount of
cash. The objective of this contract is to allow investors to trade the company's shares, ensuring
that any interested person has the possibility of buying or selling shares.

The Board of Directors on August 12, 2016 approved the acquisition of own shares with a
maximum amount of 200 thousand euros. The programme was extended until 12 August 2018
following the agreement of the Board of Directors on August 7, 2017.

Al 31 December 2018, the company held 992,257 shares with a valuation on that date of
930,068.51 euros, representing 6.1 8% of the shares of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During 2018, the Company has not used instruments related to financial derivatives.

7. DEFERMENT OF PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

The information relating to deferrals of payment to suppliers is shown in the consolidated annual
accounts in Note 10.

O R R R R



PREPARATION OF THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIRECTOR’S REPORT

In compliance with company law, the Sole Director of LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. draws up the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements and the

Consolidated Director's Report for the financial year 2018, which comprises the attached pages
number 1 to 45.

Madrid, March 25, 2019
The Board of Directors

o :
e

Mr. Fran¢isco Sapena Soler " Mr. Marcos Gallardo Meseguer
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Secretary

r. Miguel Pédez Subias Mr. Antr:miof]:ﬁp del Castillo
idependent Pirector Independent Director
W_

Mrs, Arrate Marfa Usandizaga Ruiz
Exgtutive Director

Agrupacion {ic Sepi Desarrollo Instituﬁ_fﬁgalﬁ’ inances Capital,
Empresarial, S.A. _SGEILC,SALU.
Empresa Nacioanl de innovacién, o Represented by
S.ME, S.A. Mr. Emilio Gomez Jané
Y Céntabro Catalana de Inversiones, External Director

S.A. represented by
D. Jorge Sainz de Vicuiia
External Director
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL
YEAR 2018 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDIT REPORT ON ANNUAL
ACCOUNTS ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

(Free translation of the accounts originally issued in Spanish. in the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails)

IBDO
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

Annual Accounts and Director's Report

for financial year 2018 together with

the Audit Report on Annual Accounts
issued by an Independent Auditor

AUDIT REPORT ON ANNUAL ACCOUNTS ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2018:

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017

Profit and Loss Accounts for the financial years 2018 and 2017

Statement of Changes in Partner’s Equity for the financial years 2018 and 2017
Cash-Flow Statement for the financial years 2018 and 2017

Motes to the accounts for the financial year 2018

DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2018
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

AUDIT REPORT ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
ISSUED BY AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
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Audit report on the financial statements
Issued by an independent auditor

To the Shareholders of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS,
5.4, (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet at December 31, 2018, the income
statement, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes
to the financial statements for the year then ended.

In aur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give, in all material respects, a
true and fair view of the Company's equity and financial position at December 31, 2018,
as well as its results and cash flows for the financial year ending on said date, in
accordance with the application of the regulatory framework of financial information
(identified in note Z.a of the annual report} and, in particular, with the accounting
principles and criteria contained therein.

Basis of opinion

We have performed our audit in accordance with the regulations governing the auditing
of accounts in force in Spain. Our responsibilities under these standards are described
below in the section on the auditor’s respansibilities for the audit of the annual accounts
in our report.

We are independent from the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements,
including those of independence, which are applicable to our audit of the financial
statements in Spain as required by the regulations governing the activity of auditing
accounts. Accordingly, we have not provided services other than those of the audit of
accounts nor have concurred situations or circumstances that, in accordance with the
pravisions of the aforementicned governing regulations, have compromised the necessary
independence.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit issues

The key audit matters are matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. Our audit
procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in the formation of our opinion on these and we do
not express a separate opinicn on those matters.
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Key audit issues

Audit response

Valuation of capitalized research expenditures

A described in notes 4.3, and 5 to the
accompanying notes, the Company has
intangible assets for expenses on capitalised
research projects of a significant amount.
These expenses must be specifically
individualised by project and have reasons of
economic-commercial profitability, among
other requirements in order to be capitalized
in the Company's balance sheet. In addition,
the evaluation by the Company's management
and directors of their recoverable value af the
need  for  impairment  involves  value
judgements and estimates. For these reasons,
we have considered the valuation of these
assets as a key Issue In our audit,

We have carried out the following audit
procedures, among others:

Understanding of the policies and
procedures applied by the Company for
the capitalization of research expenses.

= We have analysed the activations of the
projects during the vyear, obtaining
evidence such as the hours and cost of the
same incurred by the workers in the
different projects and the cost of external
collaborations.

- We have obtained the certificates issued
by an independent third party on the
projects regarding the validity of the
capitalised amounts.

= We have obtained a detail of the book

value of the research  expenses
individualized by projects, and analysed
the sales projections for the different
projects, profitability and real sales for
the year, goodness of the data, the
reasonableness of the hypotheses, the
degree of compliance to date, revision of
the arithmetic calculation, analysis of the
discount rate, sensitivity to the variation
of hypothesis and deviations in past
estimates in order to evaluate the
reascnableness of the recoverable value
of the research expenses.

- We have verified the correct amortization
of the different projects capitalised on
the basis of the current regulations
applied by the Company.

- Finally, we have verified that the noles to

the accompanying annual accounts
include the disclosures of related
information required by the applicable
financial reporting framework. In this
regard, Motes 4.8 and 5 of the attached
report  include the aforementioned
information breakdowns.
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Valuation of investments, loans and balances
with group companies

As described in notes 4.d, B, 9and 19 to the
accompanying notes to  the financial
statements, investments in group companies
together with the balances of group customers
balances and other loans represent, on an
aggregate basis, 16.62% of the Company's total
assets.

We focus'on this area, due to the amount of its
nel book value over the total assets of said
investments, credits and balapces, and
because the evaluation by the management
and the administrators of the Company of its
recoverable value implies the execution of
valve judgments and important estimates,
mainly on  the results, discount rate,
caleulation methodology, and future flows of
the investee companies.

For these reasons, we have considered the
valuation of investments and loans with group
companies as a key issue in our audit.

We have carried out, among others, the
following audit procedures:

- Understanding of the policies and
procedures applied by the Company
regarding the valuation of investments
and group balances.

We have analysed the evolution of the
heldings, loans and balances of the
various subsidiaries during the year as-
well as their indications of impairment.

We have analysed the situation of the
different subsidiaries, comparing the
actual results for 2018 with the figures
included in the forecasts for the previous
year in order to assess the degree of
compliance with them,

Based on the actual results for 2018, we
have questioned the corresponding
adaptation, if any, of future flows in this
year's forecasts.

We have questioned the assumptions used
by the Company's management in the
forecasts wsed in terms of growth rates
and discaunt rates applied in relation to

its sector.
- We have evaluated the need for
impairment based on recoverability

estimates and analysis of impairments
recorded by the Company.

Finally, we have verified that the notes to
the accompanying annual accounts
include the disclosures of related
information required by the applicable
financial reporting framework, In this
regard, Motes 4 d), & 9 and 19 of the
attached repert include the
aforementioned information breakdown.
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Application of the going concern principle We have carried out, ameng others, the
following audit procedures:
Due to the fact that the Company has

historically presented negative working capital -  Understanding of the policies and

and given the degree of indebtedness that the procedures applied by the Company In the

Company maintains at year-end and which estimation process of the Business Plan

represents 38% of ts liabilities, (40% in 2017), and Treasury Budget.

it is necessary for the Company to comply with

its business plan, as well as to dbtain new - Obtaiping the Business Plan and Treasury

financing through new loans and renewal of Budget prepared by the Company's

credit policles. During the financial year 2018, Management,

as well as during the financial year 2019, up to

the date of this report, the Company i5 -  Obtaining supporting  documentation

generating positive cash flow and the renewal relating to both the taking out of new

of policies is taking place, The net financial loans and the renewal of credit policies at

debt has gone from 2,639 thousand Euros In maturity.

2017 to 2,272 thousand Euros in 2018, it means

a decrease of 14% 1 one fiscal year, - We have analysed the reasonableness of
the estimates and assumptions of the

These cireumstances are  causing  and Business Plan and Treasury Budget, made

mitigating factors of doubt regarding the by the Company's directors, through

application of the going concern principle in meetings  with  management  and

the formulation of annual accounts, whose verification of contrastable data, both of

evaluation Involves wvalue judgements and the hkey hypotheses used, as well as

estimates. For these reasons, we considered concordance of these with those used in

the application of the going concern principle previous periods by the Company.

as a key issue in our audit.

- We have evaluated the goodness of the
forecasts of the Direction comparing the
deviations and reasons of these between
the budgeted figures and the real ones
corresponding to the last fiscal years.

- We have analysed the degree of
compliance with both the Business Plan
and the Treasury Budget based on 2018
figures, and we have analysed the
financial situation to date,

- Finally, we have verified that the notes to
the accompanying annual accounts
include the disclosures of related
information required by the applicable
financial reporting framework. 10 this
regard, note 2.d of the attached report
includes the aforementioned breakdown
of information.
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Other information: Management report

The other information comprises exclusively the management report for the finandial
year 2018, the formulation of which is the responsibility of the Parent's directors and
does not form an integral part of the financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the annual report. Our
responsibility over the management report, in accordance with what is required by the
regulations governing the audit activity, consists of evaluating and reporting on the
consistency of the management report with the financial statements, based on the
knowledge of the Entity obtained in performing the audit of the aforementioned accounts
and without including information other than that obtained as evidence during the same.
Likewise, our responsibility is to evaluate and report that the content and presentation
of the management report are in accordance with the applicable regulations. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there are material misstatements, we
are obliged to report this.

Based on the work performed, as described in the preceding paragraph, the information
contained in the management report agrees with that in the consolidated financial
statements for financial year 2018 and its content and presentation are in accordance
with the applicable regulations.

The responsibility of the management and the audit in the respect committee of the
financial statements

The administrators are responsible for formulating the accompanying financial
statements so that they give a true image of the equity, the financial situation and the
results of the Company, in accordance with the regulatory framework on financial
information applicable to the Entity in Spain, and of the internal control that they
consider necessary to allow the preparation of the financial statements free of material
misstatement, due to fraud or error,

In the preparation of the financial statements, the administrators are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, revealing, as appropriate,
the matters related with a company in operation and using the accounting principle of a
going concern except if the management intend to liguidate the Company or cease
operations, or if there is no other realistic alternative.

The audit committee is responsible for supervising the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements.

The auditor's responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit
report that contains our opinion,
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the regulations governing the audit activity in force in
Spain will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the regulations governing the account auditing
activity in Spain, we exercise professional judgment and maintain an attitude of
professional scepticism throughout the entire audit. Also:

DR Aieliteres 5L, i sockedad Limltada epaikila, e miembro de BOG International Limitod, ung compattia Umitada o saraniia del T Unida y dorma

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to respond
to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or circumvention of internal
control

We identify and assess risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts due to
fraud or error, design and implement audit procedures to respond to such risks and
abtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than in the
case of a material misstatement due to error, as fraud can involve collusion, forgery,
deliberate omissions, intentional misrepresentations, or the circumvention of
internal control.

We obtain knowledge of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, and not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Entity.

We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates and disclosures by the Administrators.

We conclude whether the use, by the administrators, of the accounting principle of
the Company as a going concern is adeqguate and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, we conclude on whether or not there is material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that can generate significant doubts about the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that there is material
uncertainty, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the
corresponding information disclosed in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are not adequate, we express a modified opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained at the date of our audit report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to be a going concern.

We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We are required to communicate with the audit committee regarding, amongst other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during the course of the audit.

We also required the audit committee of the Company with a statement that we have
complied with the relevant ethical requirements, including those of independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

Among the matters that have been communicated to the audit committee, we determine
those that have been of the greatest significance in the audit of the financial statements
for the current period and that are, consequently, the key issues of the audit.

We describe these matters in our audit report unless legal or regulatory provisions
prohibit public disclosure of the matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Additional report to the Audit Committee

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with that expressed in our additional
report to the Parent’s Audit Committee dated April 9, 2019,

Contract period

The Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 13, 2016 appointed us as
the Company's auditors for a period of three years, starting from the vear ended
December 31, 2016,

Previously, we were appointed by resolution of the General Shareholders' Meeting for the
three-year period and we have been auditing the accounts uninterruptedly since the year
ended December 31, 2007, and the Company has been a Public Interest Entity (PIE} since
2015,

Services provided

The services, other than the audit of accounts, provided to the Company are detailed in
Mote 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

{Stated in Eures)

ASSETS Annual Accounts 311212018 31122017
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4.812.707,36 5.772.485,78
Intangible nssets MNote § 2.841.712,39 3.847.507,50
Research 2. 702,887,938 2.827.141,69
Patents, licenses, trade marks and similar 533.7a1,72 32301998
Computer applications 31.537.64 40,976,594
Other intangible assets 573.52505 656306889
Tangible fixed assets Note 6 337.969,59 377.513,50
Land and buildings 163.217,11 143.327 21
Technical installations and other tangible fixed assets 174.752,48 234.186,29
Long-term investments in group and affiliated companies 444.204,73 1.222.726,43
Equity instruments Mote 9 162.762,19 471.125.58
Loans to companies Motes 8.2 v 19.1 28144234 T5L600.85
Long-term financial investments 185.839,70 186.637,70
Equity instruments Mote 8.3 154.077.40 154.077,40
Other financial assets Note 8.2 31.762,30 32.560,30
Deferred Tax Assets Mot 15 2.980,95 138.100,65
CURRENT ASSETS 4.976.372,02 4.189.323.61
Trade and other receivables 313167282 2.528.890,99
Client receivables for sales and services Mole 8.2 | 98547655 1.961.360,12
Clients of the Group and alliliated companies Motes 8.2 y 19.1 LOT8. 177,08 486,126,580
Sundry debtors Mates 8.2 76.772,54 38.664,42
Staff Motes .2 4.280.40 4.625,00
Currenl 18y assels Mote 15 6.400,62 7.768,09
Ohther receivables from Peblic Authorities MNote 15 A0.565.63 30.346.56
Short-term investments in group and affiliated companies Note 8.2 y 19.1 164.725,64 124.698.86
Loans to companies 164.725,64 124,598, 86
Short-term financial investments Naote 8.2 TH3.005,50 L012.416,64
Other financial assets 703.005,50 1241664
Short-term aceruals 233.061,91 223,209,481
Cash and cash equivalents Note 8.1 T43.906,15 300,107,531
Cash 743.906,15 300,107,.31
TOTAL ASSETS 278907938 9.961.809,39
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS A5 OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

{Stated in Euros)

! Notés to the Annual :
[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Accounis S3122018 3212017
EQUITY 3.790.079,13 4:.041.719.06
Equity 3. 790.079,13 4.041.719.06
Capital Mote 13.1 320,998,586 320,998 86
Share Capital 320.998 86 320.998.86
Issue premium Mote 13.3 524434428 5.244.544,28
Reserves MNote 13.2 1.442.009,79 L.466. 165,42
Legal and statutory 47.503.72 47.503,72
ither Reserves 1.394. 506,07 1.418.661,70
{Shares and own holdings in equity) Note 13.4 {954.287,73) (935.557,23)
Retained earnings (2.054.2322T) (1.801.339,18)
Financial year’s earnings {208. 753,800 (252.893,0%)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1.373.581,25 L143.0626,35
Long-term debts MNote 10.1 1.373.581,25 1.143.026,35
Debts with credit institutions 1. 126.973,02 1.023.296,73
Financial-lease debt 2R.640,14 48.443,90
Other financial liabilitics 217.962.09 T128572
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4.625.419,00 4.777.063,98
Short-term provisions B5.450,00 A1.320,00
Short-term debts Note 10.1 2.345.516,67 2.508.916.88
Dreits with credit institutions 2.253.038,00 2.732.604,86
Financial-lease debt 19.797,76 10,454 57
Other financial liahilities T2.680.91 5685745
Trade and other payables 2.194.452,33 1.936.827,10
Suppliers Note 10,1 1.462.172,12 LORO.209. 19
Suppliers, group and alfilated companies Note 10,1 3 19.1 245.540,89 233.022,50
Sundry creditors Note 10,1 158.632,73 146,474,52
Staff (reruneration payable) Mote 11,1 - 297,60
Other debts with Public Authoritics MNote 15 129.484.21 97.97%9,44
Advances from clients Mote 11,1 88,622,318 178,843,435
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,789.079,38 9.961.809,39
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FROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATIC

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS 2018 AND 2017

{Stated in Eurps)

' . n Notes to the T ]
[PROUTT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS AniAEA noowib 2018 2017

Met turnover Mote 21 12.078.022,12 9.655. 770,89
et sales 12,078.022,12 965577984
Waork performed by the company for its asscts Note § THO.6306,39 R45.957 59
Supplics Note T6.a (6286.002,77) (4.677.342,31)
Gionds consumied (6.2B6.002.77) {4.677.342.31)
Other operating ineome 21.584,72 42.600,70
Ancillavy and other cureent operaling incomes 93122 1.942 46
Olperating grants income 21.653,50 40.658,24
Staff cxpenses (2.597.700,51) {2.274.996,9%)
Wages, sulavies and the fike {2.012.4%6.30) {(1,712.723.7T)
Fringe benefits Mote 16.b (585.220.21) {(362.273,21}
Other operating expenses (2.262.761,06) (ZAST.148,64)
External charges forservices (2.202.122.56) {2.040.115,56)
Taxes (43 886,02} {30,157.54)
Losses, Impainnent and change in tade provisions (16.281,28) (86, 875.54)
Other currenl operating expenscs (471,20 =
Amortization of fixed assets MNoles Sy 6 (1148114 ,84) {LO73.727.08)
Other earnings 344 (27.48)
OPERATING EARNINGS S92.661,49 36409572
Financial income Maote 16.c 40,492,248 62,662,842
Income from negotiable securities and other financial

instruments, growp ond affilinted companies A0.026,78 45 480,58
Other income from negotiable securities and other thivd-party

finaneial instrumenls 465,50 17.182,24
Finaneial expenses Note 16.c 9L219,17) (6. 184,56)
For debis with third parties {91.219,17) (6. 184,56)
Exchange differences Note 16.¢ (33.441,01) (B.467,07)
Impairments and exrnings for disposals of financial

instrioments Note 16.¢ (582.127.67) [STS.000,00)
Impairments and losses (562,127,69) ( 375.0000,00)
FINANCIAL EARNINGS (666.295,59) (616.288,81)
PRE-TAX EARNINGS (73.634,10) (252.893,09)
Profit tax Mote 15 (135.119,70) -
FINANCIAL YEAR'S EARNINGS

FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS (208.753.80) {252.893.09)
FINANCIAL YEAR'S EARNINGS (:IHS.'?SE.M}' {252.893.09)
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LLEIDANETWORIS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR FINANCIAL YEARS 2018 AND 2017
{Stated in Euros)

2017

2018
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES L191,004,09 130791543
Financial vear's pre-tax earnings (73.624,10) (252.893,07)
Adjustments to carnings LA51.380,7T 1.641.441.88
Amorlization of fixed assets 1148, 114,84 1.073.727,05
Valoation changes for impairment 59840897 6] 875,54
WVarlation of provisions 34.,130,00 (127.662,45)
Financial incomes (40.492.28) (62.662,82)
Financial expenses 9121917 9,184,356
Changes in corrent eapital (372.65745) THTET A0
Trade and other recéivables {620.430,58) (411.204,05)
Cither current assels (852,100 Odad 47
Trade and other payables 257.625.23 489, 0d6,68
Other eash flow from opernting activities {214.085,06) (159,420,46)
Interest payments (91.219,17) (96,1 84,56)
Interest incomes {124.233,35) (62.036,04)
Tax income 1.367.47 (1. 199, 86)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES {471.473,81) (LUM9.608.49)

Payments for investments
Intangible fixed asseis

(1.102.775,82)
(1.018.267,51)

Tangible fixed asscts (54.508,31)
Procecds from disposals 631.302,01
Giroup and affiliated companics 121,092 87
Oither financial asseis 310.209,14
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (275.731,44)
Recetpts and payments for equity instruments (42.886,13)
Acquizition of own equity instruments (42.886.13)
Collections and payments for financial liability instruments (232,845,31)
Issuing: 1107459 83
Amounts owed o credit instilutions 845.000,00
Others 1 62.490 83
Repayment and amortization of: (1.344.345,14)

Amounts owed to eredit institutions
(Others

NET INCREASE/REDUCTION OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash or cash equivalents at start of financial year
Cash or cash equivalents at end of financial vear

(1.340.345,14)
443,798,584

J00.107.31
743.906,15

(1.209.948,60)
(1.174,190,27)
(35.758.33)

160.340,11
71.951,28
BE.388,83

(1.236.262,60)

(79.699,29)
(79.699.29)

{1.156,563,31)

(1.156:563,31)
(1108 864.65)
(47.698,65)

(F77.955,66)

1. 278.062.97
300,107,310
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LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018

NOTE 1. INCORPORATION, ACTIVITIES AND LEGAL SYSTEM OF THE
COMPANY

a) Incorporation and Registered Office

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. (hereinafter "Parent Company"),
was registered in Lleida on January 30th, 1995. On October 7, 2017, the Parent Company
approved the change of registered office, which is currently located at General Lacy, number
42, Ground Floor - Local 1 in Madrid. Previously its repistered office was at the Parc Cientific
1 Tecnologic Agroalimentari de Lleida, Edifici H1, Plania 2, de Lleida.

On June 30, 2011, the General Shareholders' Meeting was held in which the transformation
from a Limited Company to a Public Limited Company was agreed. On December 12, 2011,
the agreement reached at the aforementioned meeting was notarized and deposited in the
Mercantile Registry on February 17, 2012,

b) Activities

[ts activity consists in acting as a teleoperator for short message management services (SMS)
over the Internet, as well as any other activity related to the aforementioned corporate purpose.

The Company financial year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December of each year, In the

rest of the Notes to this Annual Report, each time reference is made to the financial year ending
on December 31, 2018, this will simply stated as “financial year 2018",

¢) Legal System
The Company is governed by its Articles of Association and by the Law Capital Companies.

d) Quotation in the Alternative Stock Market

On June 1%, 2015, the Parent Company approved at the Sharcholders’ Meeting the request for
incorporation into the Alternative Stock Market of all the shares of the Parent Company.
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On October 7th, 2015, the Board of Directors of Bolsas y Mercados Espafioles, Sistemas de
Negociacion, S.A., approved the incorporation of 16.049.943 shares of 0,02 euros’ nominal
value each into the segment of companies in expansion of the Alternative Stock Market,
effective as of October 9, 2015. The Parent Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
Asesores de Negocios, S.L. and as Liquidity Provider to BEKA Finance, S.V., S.A. company
subsequently integrated into the GVC GAESCO VALORES 8V, S.A. group. On November 7,
2015, the Parent Company changed its Registered Advisor, appointing GVC GAESCO
VALORES 8V, S§.A. On December 19, 2018, the Company was listed on Euronext Growth
Paris under the dual listing system, with Invest Securities being the Listing Sponsor.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

a) True and Fair View

The Annual Accounts for the financial year 2018 have been taken from the Company
accounting records and drawn up in accordance with the applicable commercial law currently
in force and with the standards established in the General Accounting Plan approved by Spanish
Royal Decree 1514/2007, of 16 November, applying the modifications introduced by Royal
Decree 1159/2010, to show a true and fair view of the Company assets and liabilities, financial
position and earnings, as well as the accuracy of the cash flows included in the cash flow
statement,

b) Accounting Principles Applied

The Annual Accounts have been drawn up by applying the accounting principles established in
the Spanish Commercial Code and in the General Accounting Plan.

¢} Presentation Currency

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations on accounting, the annual accounts are
expressed in Euros.

d) Critical Aspects of Uncertainties Valuation and Estimation

In preparing the accompanying Annual Accounts, the Board of Directors used estimates to
value cerlain assets, liabilities, income and expenses recorded therein. The estimates and criteria
refer to:

- Evaluation of the operating principle:

© The Company has historically presented negative working capital and given the
degree of indebtedness that the Company maintains at year-end and which
represents 38% of its liabilities (40% in 2017), it is necessary for the Company
to comply with its business plan, as well as to obtain new financing through new
loans and renewal of credit policies. During 2018 and 2019, up to the date of
preparation of these financial statements, the Company is generating positive
cash flows and credit lines are being renewed. The net financial debt has gone
from 2.639 thousand Euros in 2017 to 2.272 thousand Euros in 2018, it means a
decrease of 14% in one fiscal year.
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- Possible impairment of assets: investments, loans and balances with group companies
(Note 4-d):

o At 3] December 2018, the Company has significant balances receivable from
Group companies (see Note 19.1), the recovery of which will be linked to the
generation of cash by the subsidiaries. On the basis of the budgets established
by management, the Company's Board of Directors estimates that all the Group
company receivables on the Company's balance sheet will be recovered.

Excepl as mentioned in the preceding paragraphs, there are no uncertainties or aspects of the
future that could entail a significant risk that could lead to significant changes in the value of
assets and liabilities in the following year, excepl for those inherent to the nature of the business:

- Slower growth than expected in the Business Plan: slower maturation in some countries.

- Reasonability of the activation and recoverability of research projects.

- Currency risk, although the Company has a natural hedge with revenues and costs in
foreign subsidiaries denominated in the same currency.

- Highly atomised and locally competitive market.

Although these estimates have been made on the basis of the best information available at the
close of financial year 2018, it is possible that events that may take place in the future will make
it necessary to modify them (upwards or downwards) in coming years, which would be done
prospectively, recognising the effects of the change in the estimate in the corresponding profit
and loss account.

¢) Comparison of the Information

In accordance with commercial law, for comparison purpeses, the Board of Directors presents,
in addition to the figures for the financial year 2018, for each of the items in the Balance Sheet,
Profit and Loss Accounts, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash-Flow Statement,
the figures for the previous financial year. The items for both financial years are comparable
and homogeneous.

f) Changes in Accounting Standards

There have been no changes in the accounting standards

o) Correction of Errors

The 2018 Annual Accounts do not include related adjustments as a result of errors detected in
the annual accounts of previous years.

h) Responsibility for the Information Given and the Estimates Made

Board of Directors is responsible for the information provided in these annual accounts. These
annual accounts have used estimates valuing some of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses
and undertakings recorded there. These estimates basically refer to the valuation of losses due
to the impairment of specific assets and the useful life of tangible and intangible assets.
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Notwithstanding that these estimates were made according to the best information available at
the time of the preparation of these annual accounts, il 15 possible that future events may occur
that require their amendment for the next financial vears; which would be carried out
prospectively, taking account of the effects of the estimate change on the corresponding profit
and loss accounts.

i} Statement of Recognized Income and Expenses

The Company has recognized no income nor expense directly to the Equity nor in the current
financial year neither in the last one, having registered the totality of them in the corresponding
Profit and Loss Account. This is why the current Annual Accounts does not include the
Statement of Recognized Income and Expenses.

NOTE 3. DISTRIBUTION OF EARNINGS

The proposed distribution of 2018 and 2017, drawn up by the Board of Directors are shown
below, in Euros:

2018, 2017
Distribution hase:
Profits obtained! (Generated losses) in the
[inancial year (2018.753,80) (252.893,09)
Distribution to:
Compensation of previous years losses (208.753,80) (252.893,09)

The unamortised balances of research and development expenses totalled 2.702.887,98 euros
in 2018 (2.827.141,69 euros in 2017). Since the total available reserves are less than this
amount, the Company may not distribute any dividends in accordance with current mercantile
legislation,

NOTE 4. RECOGNITION AND VALUATION STANDARDS

The principal standards used by the Company in the drafting of its Annual Accounts for the
2018 financial year, in accordance with those established by the General Accounting Plan, were
as follows:

a) Intangible Fixed Assets

Assets included in intangible fixed assets are valued by their cost, whether purchase price or
production cost, reduced by the corresponding aceumulated amortization and losses from any
impairment which, where appropriate, has occurred.

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful
life. The amortization charge for each period is recognized in profit or loss.
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Research and Development Costs

Capitalized research and development costs are specifically individualized for projects and their
costs are clearly established so they can be spread over time. Similarly, Management the Group
has substantial grounds for expecting the technical success and the financial and commercial
profitability of these projects

Research and development costs that appear as assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their useful life, at an annual rate of 20%, and always within a period of 5 years.

As spon as there are reasonable doubts over the technical success or financial and commercial

profitability of a project, the values recorded in the asset that apply to it are directly allocated
to the financial year's losses.

Computer Applications

Licenses for computer applications purchased from third parties are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred for purchasing.

Computer applications are amortized on a straight-line basis throughout their useful lives, at an
annual rate of 33%.

Maintenance expenses for computer applications incurred during the financial year are
recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

Industrial Property

Corresponds to the capitalized development expenses for which the relevant patent or similar
has been obtained, and includes the registration and formalization costs for the industrial
property, as well as the costs for purchasing the corresponding rights from third parties.

During all these years, the Company has been able to develop methods and unique technologies
in its sector by continuous investment in research and development. The result of this effort has
been the publication of patents at European, American and PCT levels, putting in value the
effort developed during these last years. These patents allow the Group to license this
technology to third parties and protect it against possible copies of other actors in the sector,
less scrupulous when creating original models.

b) Tangible Fixed Asscts

Tangible fixed assets are valued by their acquisition price net of the corresponding accumulated
amortization and, where appropriate, of the accumulated value of the recognized allowances
for impairment.

Repair and maintenance expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the Profit
and Loss Account. Costs for renovating, extending or improving intangible fixed assets,
representing an increase in capacity, productivity or lengthening of useful life, are capitalized
as a higher value of the corresponding assets, once the book values of the replaced items have
been de-recognized.
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Tangible fixed assets, net of their residual value, where appropriate, are amortized by a straight-
line-basis distribution of the various items that constitute these fixed assets over the years of
estimated useful life making up the period in which the Group hopes to use them, according to
the following table:

Anmual  Estimaied Yearsof |
Percentage Useul Life
Buildings 2,50 40
Technical facilities 8-10 12,50~ 10
Machinery 20-25 3-4
Other installations ] 10
Furniture 10-15 10— 6,67
Computer equipment 25-50 4-2
Other tangible fixed agsets 15 6,67

The book value of a tangible fixed-asset item is de-recognized in the accounts through its
alienation or disposal by other means; or where no future economic benefits or profits are
expected to be obtained for its use, alienation or disposal by other means.

The loss or profit resulting from writing-off a tangible fixed-asset item is determined as the
difference between the net values, where appropriate, of the sales costs resulting from its
alienation or disposal by other means, where available, and the item's book value, and is
allocated to the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which this
OCCurs.

At the financial year’s closure, the Company assesses whether there are signs of impairment in
a tangible fixed-asset item or any cash-generating unit, in which case the recoverable amounts
are estimated and the necessary allowances are made.

An impairment loss is deemed to have occurred in a tangible fixed-asset item where its book
value exceeds its recoverable value, this being understood as the higher value between its fair
value less the sales costs and its value in use,

Allowances for impairment in the tangible fixed-asset items, as well as their reversals where
the circumstances producing them cease, are recognized as an expense or income respectively
in the Profit and Loss Account.

¢) Leases and Other Transactions of a Similar Nature

Operating-lease expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the Profit and Loss
Account,

d) Financial Instruments
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on their initial recognition

and, where it is permitted and appropriated, this classification is re-assessed on each closing
balance sheet,
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Financial instruments, for the purposes of their valuation, are classified in any of the following
categories:

Loans and Receivable Items and Debts and Payable Items.

Loans and receivable items
The following are classified under this category:

a) Trade credits: financial assets arising from the sale of assets and the provision of services
for commercial transactions, and

b) Non trade credits: financial assets which, being neither equity instruments nor derivatives,
have no commercial origins, whose payments are for a fixed or determinable amount, and
which are not traded in an active market. They do not include those financial assets for
which the Company cannot recover substantially all the initial investments, owing fo
circumstances unrelated to credit impairment. The latter are classified as available for sale.

Debts and payable items

The following are classified under this category:

a) Trade debts: financial debts arising from the purchase of assets and services through
commercial transactions, and

b) Non trade debts: Financial liabilities which, not being derivate instruments, have no
commercial origing

Initially, financial assets and liabilities included in this category are valued by their fair value,
which is the price of the transaction and which is equivalent to the fair value of the consideration
paid plus the transaction costs which are directly attributable to it.

Notwithstanding what is stated in the above paragraph, loans and debts through commercial
transactions with a maturity not greater than one year and which do not have a contractual rate
of interest, as well as, where appropriate, advances and loans made to staff, receivable dividends
and called payments on equity instruments, the amounts for which are expected to be received
in the short term, and payments called by third parties on holdings, the amounts for which are
expected to be paid in the short term, are valued by their nominal value where the effect of not
updating the cash flows is of no significance.

In subsequent valuations, both assets and liabilities are valued by their amortized cost. Accrued
interest is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account by applying the effective interest rate
method. Notwithstanding the above, loans and debts with a maturity no greater than one year
which are initially valued by their nominal value, remain valued by this amount unless, in the
case of loans, they have been impaired.

At the year end, the necessary allowances are made where there is objective evidence of value
ofa credit having been impaired i.e. where there is evidence of a reduction or delay in estimated
future cash flows corresponding to that asset.
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An impairment loss in the value of loans and receivable sums corresponds to the difference
between their book value and the current value of the estimated future cash flows to be
generated, deducted at the effective interest calculated on their initial recognition.

Allowance for impairment of debts as of December 31, 2018, has been estimated on the basis
of the analysis made on each of the individualized outstanding receivables on that date.

Investments in group. multi-group and affiliated companies equity instrument's

They are initially valued at cost, which corresponds to the fair value of the consideration paid
plus the transaction costs which are directly attributable to them,

They are subsequently valued by their cost, less, where appropriate, the accumulated value of
the allowances for impairment,

At the close of the financial year, and where there is objective evidence that the book value of
an investment will not be recoverable, the necessary allowances are made.

The value of the allowance is determined as the difference between the book value and the
recoverable value, unless there is better evidence of the recoverable value of the investments,
account is taken, in estimating the impairment in this class of assets, of the proportion of equity
of the entity in which there are holdings, corrected for the implicit capital gains present at the
date of valuation, which correspond to items identifiable on the balance sheet of the entity in
which there are holdings.

Allowances for impairment and, where appropriate, its reversal, are recognized as an expense
or income respectively in the Profit and Loss Account. The reversal of the impairment shall be
limited to the book value of the investment that would have been recognized on the reversal
date had the impairment not been recognized.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset, or part of it, is de-recognized where the contractual rights over the cash flows
of the financial asset have expired or been assigned, and the risks and benefits attaching to its
ownership have been substantially transferred,

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial lability is de-recognized where the corresponding obligation ceases

Interest received from financial assets

Interest and dividends from financial assets accrued subsequent to their purchase are recognized
as income in the Profit and Loss Account.

Interests are recognized by using the effective interest rate method, and dividends where it is
declared that shareholders are entitled to receive it, For these purposes, in the initial valuation
of the financial assets, both the value of the explicit interest, accrued and non-matured at that
time, and the value of the dividends agreed to body. on acquisition are recognized separately,
bearing in mind their maturity, in the initial valuation of the financial assets,
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Guarantees Given

Guarantees given through operating leases and provision of services are valued by the amount
paid out and received respectively.

e) Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized by their exchange value in Euros, by using
the spot exchange-rate for the dates on which they occur.

On the close of each financial year, monetary items are valued by applying the average spot
exchange-rate on that date. Exchange differences, both positive and negative, which result from
this process, as well as those generated on selling off equity items, are recognized in the Profit
and Loss Account for the financial year in which they arise.

f) Profit Tax

Profit tax is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account or directly in the Equity depending on
where the gains or losses giving rise to it are found. Profit tax for each financial year includes
both current and deferred taxes, where appropriate. The income tax for each year includes both
current and deferred taxes, if applicable.

The current tax amount is the sum to be paid by the Company as a result of the assessment
notices for the tax.

Differences between the book value of assets and liabilities, and their tax base, generate the
deferred tax asset or liability tax balances which are calculated using the expected tax rates at
the time of their reversal, and under the method in which it can be reasonably expected to
recover or pay the asset or liability,

Variations arising during the financial year in deferred tax asset or liability taxes are recognized
either in the Profit and Loss Account or directly in the equity, as appropriate.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized insofar as it is probable that the company will have
future tax gains that allow these assets to be applied.

In each closing balance sheet the book value of the recognized deferred tax assets is analyzed
and the necessary adjustments are made insofar as there are doubts over their future tax
recoverability. Likewise, in each closing non-recognized deferred taxes are assessed in the
balance sheet and these are subject to recognition to the extent that their recovery with future
tax benefits is probable.

g) Income and Expenses

Income and expenses are allocated according to the accrual basis, i.e. where the real flow of
goods and services occurs which these represent, irfespective of when the monetary or financial
flow deriving from them occurs.
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Income resulting from the sale of goods and provision of services is valued by the fair value of
the consideration, received or to be received, that derives from these, which; unless there is
evidence to the contrary, is the agreed price for these goods or services, less: the amount of any
discount, reduction or other similar items that the Company may concede, as well as the interest
incorporated into the face value of the credits.

Income from services is recognized when the result of the transaction can be estimated reliably,
considering the percentage of completion of the service at the year-end date. Consequently,
only income from the provision of services is accounted for when all and each of the following
conditions:

a) The amount of the income can be reliably valued.

b) It is probable that the Company receives financial benefits or profits arising from the
transaction.

¢) The extent of the transaction carried out, on the date of closure of the financial year,
can be reliably valued, and

d) The costs already incurred in the service's provision, as well as those that are yet to be
incurred up to its completion, can be reliably valued.

h) Provisions and Contingencies

Debentures existing at the close of the financial year, resulting from past events which may
occasion loss in equity for the Group, and whose value and time of cancellation are
indeterminate, are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as provisions and are valued
by the current value of the best possible estimate for the amount necessary to cancel the
obligation or transfer it to a third party.

i) Grants, Donations and Legacies

Non-refundable capital grants, as well as donations and legacies, are valued by the fair value of
the amount granted or of the goods received. They are initially allocated directly as income in
the Consolidated equity and recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account in
proportion to the amortization undergone over the period by the assets financed through these
grants, unless these are non-depreciable assets, in which case they will be allocated to the
earmings of the financial year in which their alienation or de-recognition takes place.

Grants intended for cancelling debts are allocated as income for the financial year in which the
cancellation occurs, unless they are received for a specific financing, in which case the

allocation is made according to the item that is financed.

Refundable grants are recognized as long-term debt convertible into subsidies until they become
non-refundable.

Operation grants are credited to the earnings of the financial year when they accrue,
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i) Related-Party Transactions

In general, items forming the subject matter of a related-party transaction are initially
recognized by their fair value. The subsequent valuation is made in accordance with the
provisions laid down in the corresponding regulations.

k) Cash-Flow Statements

Cash-flow statements use the following expressions according to the meanings given below:

Cash and Fquivalents: Cash is both cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are
financial instruments forming part of the Group’s normal cash management, are convertible
into cash, have initial maturities no greater than three months and are subject to little significant
risk of change in their value,

Cash Stream-flows: inflows and outflows of cash or other equivalent resources, with the latter
being understood as investments having terms under three months, high liquidity and low risk
of changes in value.

Operating Activities: these are the activities that make up the principal source of the Group's
ordinary income, as well as other activities that cannot be classified under investment or
financing.

Investment Activities: acquisition, alienation or disposal by other means of long-term assets
and other investments not included in cash or cash equivalents.

Financing Activities: activities that lead to changes in the size and composition of the equity
and financial liabilities.

NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Details of and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2018 are as follows:

- 31122017 Additions  Recognition Transférs  31/1272018
Cost:
Research 9,341 242,16 THO.636,39 - = l127.878,55
Industrial Froperty IRE. 55099 - - 309,495,773 HER.046,72
Computer applications 221.657,90 497923 - - 226.637,13
Advances for intingible lxed assets 63636889 Za.65],89 - [309.495.73) 573.525,05
10.607.819.24 101826751 - = 11.626.08745
Accumulated amortzation:
Research (GS1A 100ATY  (910.890,10) - - [(TAZ4ER0.5TY
Industrial Property (63.531.01) (98.753.9% - - [ 16d 285,00}
Computer spplicationg { 180.680,96) (1a.418,53) - - (195.099,49)
(6.760.312,44)  (1.024.062,62) - - {7.784,375,06)
Tutangible Fixed Assets, Net 3. B47.507.50 (5.795,11) - - 3.841.712,39
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Details of and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2017 are as [ollows:

Coat:

Research

Industrial Property

Computer applications

Advances for intangible fixed asscrs

Accumulnted nmortization:
Resenrch

Industrinl Property
Comiputer applications

Intangible Fixed Asscts, Net

31/1212006  Additions  Recognition  Transfers 31122017

8.492.284,57 £48.957,59
1B8.966,60 -
180, 706,33 A0951,57
ST1L672,17 284,281,11
243362967  1174,190,27

(5.594.085.96)  (920.014,51)
(27.344,34)  (38.186,67)
(170.663,60) (10.017,36)
(5.792.093,90)  (968.218,54)
3.641.535,77 205.971,73

Fully-amortized and In-use Items

- 9.341.242.16

199,584.39 JB3.550,99

- 221.657,%0
(199.584,39) 636,368,859
- 1L607.819,94

- (6.514,100,47)
- (65.531,01)
- (180.680.96)

{6.760,312.44)

- AB4TS07.50

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of December 31, 2018 and at December 31, 2017, is the following, stating their cost

values in Euros:

Research
Patents
Computer applications

NOTE 6. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

3111212018
5.472.949,24
26.783,16
167.566,20

5.667.298,60

311122017

4.786.721,68
1.376,84
167.566,20

4.955.734,72

The breakdown of tangible fixed assets as of December 31, 2018 is as follows, in Euros:

Cost:

Land and buildings

Teehnical installitions and muchinery
Cither installations, tools sid Rermiture
Diata processing cquipment

Other tangible fixed assets

Accomulinted amortization:

Land and buildisngs

Technical installaticas

and machineny

Other installations, tools wad fumature
Diata processing equipment

Oiher tangible fixed assets

Tanpible Fixed Assets, Net

Az

7222855
253 06045
79.150,73
360,928,035
J087 87

B6E.J65,55

(28901 34)
(1RO T08,54)
(45.553,76)
(233.200.54)
{3.0BT 47)
{490.852,05)

37T513.50

Allilitions

24.957,19
2011250
37.590,70

1847 92

84.508,31

{5.067.29)
(20,553,400
{3.353,79)
(R8.795.01)
(282,73)
(124.052.22)

(39.543,91)

Transfers L2018

® 197, 135,74
2 25296945
- 95.365,23
. JOR519.65
- 4. 835,79

: 9RIHTIEG

L {33.968.63)
- (20066159}
- (34.907,55)
- (321.995.55)
- (3.370,60)
= (614.904,27)

= I 069,58
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The breakdown of tangible fixed assets as of December 31, 2017 is as follows, in Euros:

| 311202006 Additions Transfers A7

Cosly
Land and buiidings 172.228,55 - - 17222855
Technical mstaliations and niachinery 252960 45 - - 25296045
Ciber installations, tools and fumitare 79, 150,73 - - 79.130,73
Datn processing ¢quipment 24701962 3575833 TRO51,00 36092895
Other tangible fived misets 1087 87 - - J08TRT
Caost: TR.058,00 - (TH050,00% -
B32.607,22 J5.758,33 - 6830555
Accumulnted amortization:
Land gnid buildings (24.595,63) (4.305.71) - (2E.901,34)
Technical installations
nnd machinery {159.555,14) [20L553 40 - (180 108,54)
Other installations, tools and fumiture [3E.157,68) (T-336,08) . (45.553,76)
Diata processing equipment (160.349,25) (TEAS1.25) - (233200, 54)
Oither rangibhe fised dssets {2045 84} (442,03} - {3087 87)
(385.343,54) {105.508,51) ¥ (49101,852,05)
Tangible Fixed Assets, Net 447.263,64 (69,750, 18) - 377.513,50

Fully-amortized and In-use Items

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use-as of June 30, 2018 and at December 31, 2017, is shown below stating their cost values in
Euros:

| 5 S T

Technical installations and machinery 4346870 43 468,70
Data processing equipment 148.061,46 12944892
191.530,16 172.917,62

NOTE 7. LEASES AND OTHER OPERATIONS OF SIMILAR NATURE

7.1) Financial L.eases (the Company as Lessee)

The Company has the following assets financed though financial lease agreements as of
December 31, 2018, in euros:

Fair Value of the Due ‘Signature  Outstanding
Valu¢:  purchase option Date ~ date Cdues

Computer equipment B0.798,12 1.707,27 0012021 04/05/2017 48.433,90
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The following is the total amount of future payments in financial leases as of December 31,
2018. in euros:

Financial year
SN .
Total amount of minimum future payments
at the close of the yvear 47.803,56
(-) Mon-accrued financial expenses {1.066,93)
WValue of the purchase option 1,707,27
Current value ai the close of the year 48.443,90

7.2) Operating Leases (the Company as Lessee)

The amount of the contingent payments recognized as an expense in year 2018 is 247.950.62
euros (271.853,24 euros in the previous year).

The following is the breakdown of the total amount of the minimum future payments
corresponding to the non-cancellable operating leases:

2018 2017
Up to | year 254,733,306 2325,542,02
Between | and 5 years L45.266,52 L60.606,02
More of 5 vears 152.242.20 170.695.80
556.242,08 556.843,84

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS

The detail of non-cwrrent financial assets, except for investments in the equity of group
companies, multigroup and associate companies, shown in Note 9, is as follows:

iy Tty s wid Ottrs Fisnncial Asets
o dMmnols 31422017 31122018 322017

Loans and receivable items (Note 8.2) - - 313.204,64 T84.161,15

Financial assets available for sale

(Mote 8.3) 154.077 40 154.077.40 i

Total 154.077 40 154.077.40 31320464 784.161,15

The breakdown of the short-term financial assets, is as follows, in euros:

Credits and Others Financial Assets

SO 311212018 322017
Assets at fair value through the profit and loss: 743.906,15 J00. 10731
Cash or other liquid assets (Mote 8,1) 743.906,15 300, 107,31
Loans and receivable items (Note 8.2) 1.952.437,71 1.627.891,84

Total 4.696.343,86 3.927.999,15
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8.1) Assets at Fair Value through the Profit and Loss

Cash and other Equivalent Liguid Assets

The detail of this assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows, in euros:

Current Accounts
Cash

Total

Baldnce at

31122018

736.226,19
7.679,5%6

T43.906,15

Balunce at

3171202017

290.188.35
9.918.96

30.107.31

8.2) Loans and Receivable Items

The composition of this epigraph as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is the following:

Balance at 31/12/2018

Long-Term Short-Term
Loans and receivables items for
commercial transactions
Costumers - 985 476,55
Refated party customers (Note 19.1) - 1.018.177,08
Debtors - Th 7754
Tatal loans and receivables items for
commercial transactions - 3.080.426,17
Lioans and receivables for
non-commercial transactions
Group Companies (Mote 19.1) 281.442,34 164.725.64
Staff - £.280.40
Short-term deposits {#) - T3.005, 501
Securities and deposits 31.762,30 -
Total loans and receivables for
non-commercial transactions 313204 .64 B72.011,54
Total 31320464 305243771

~ Balance nt 31/12/2017°
Long-Terim Short-Term
= 1.961,360,12
£ 486.126,80
- 38.664,42
- 2.486.151,34
751.600,85 124,698 86
: 4.625,00
- L.i12.416,64
32,560,30 -
784.161,15 1.141.740,50
754.161,15 3.627.891,84

* Shori-tenm depasifs have a maturity to short-term and acorie o marked inferest Fate,

Trade and other receivables include impairments due to insolvency risks, as detailed below:

Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2016

Impalrment losses on tade receivables

Accnmulated impairment end of financial year 2017

Impairment losses on tade receivables

Accumulated impairment as of June 30, 2018

Amount
488, 139,83
06,400,606
554,546,409

554.540,49
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The balances of credits for non-trade operations to group companies include an impairment of
575,000 euros of the Lleidanetworks Group company Serveis Telematics, LTD and an
impairment of 177,961.60 euros of the Lleidanet USA Group company Inc.

8.3) Financial Assets available for Sale

Correspond to two investments made by the Company last year in:

a) E.Kuantia: financial institution specialized in the issuance of means of payment and
electronic money. The investment amounts to 143.880 euros and corresponds to 2% of
the share capital.

b) IBAN Wallet: global platform. linking investors and loan applicants, with high rates for
both. The investment amounts to 10.197,40 euros and corresponds to 0,38% of the share
capital.

NOTA 9. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS IN GROUP, MULTI-GROUP AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The breakdown of the holdings held of the Group companies at December 31, 2018, is as
follows:

' s Divect T  Netvalueat 1 Book
Company Equity Cost. bmpairments 31122018 2018
Group companics:

Lleidanetworks Scrveis Telemdtics, LTD | 0% 4.00 . EN e (628 600 00
Lleidanet LISA Inc 1 )% 397501 09 (397.591,09 - (647 817,723
Lleidanet Honduras, SA TG 659,05 - (59,05 639,05
LLeidanet Dominices, SEL G DR 1012797 . 10127 97 (10.604,56)
Llgida SAS 1% 147, TR, 60 - 147, 789,60 5e. 350,94
Lieida Chile SPA 100% 3.256,83 - 3.256,83 325683
Llgidunel di Brawil Lida 09 %, 1 LB, Q0 - 1L B06,00 (22558 B4}
Ligidanet Gusternaln Bl 3.234.00 - 325400 3.234,00
Fortabilidados Espafiolas, 5.4, 100% 3,008 O 2 3.000,00 (202,13}
Lleidanet Costs Rica 100% L Dt - 16,06 (BT.84}
Lieidanzt Peri 100%: 268,02 - 26808 (104.375.18)
Desembolsoz pendientes Lletdanel LSA (2,349.36) - {2.3449.36) -
Desembolsos pendientes

Lleidunet Honduras, SA {650,05) B (659.05) -
Desembuolsos pendientes Lleidanet

Diominica, SRL (1012797} = (10277 .
Desembolsos pendicntes Licida Chile SBA (3.256,43) - (325683} -
Affilinted companies:

Llgidn Metworks Indig Private Limited 5% 6,5375.00 (6_575,00) - 2035632
Tatil SEHI284R (40 166,09) 162.762,39 (1.332.460,53)

Valuation Corrections

In 2018, the Company has fully impaired its holdings in Lleidanet USA. Inc and Lleida
Networks India Private Limited. This had an impaet on the profit and loss account of 406.166,09
euros.
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The registered offices and the activities carried out by the investees are shown below:

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, LTD

Incorporated on December 28, 2005 in Dublin, with its registered office in Birchin Court 20,
Birchin Lane London (United Kingdom). Its main activity is as operator.

Lleidanet USA Inc.

Incorporated on May 12, 2009 and its registered office is at 2719 Hollywood Boulevard Street
21 FL33020, Hollywood. Its main activity is as operator. On June 30, 2013 a capital increase
was made in Lleidanet USA Inc. for 397.515,00 euros which Lleidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, S.A. subscribed in entirely.

Lleidanet Honduras. S.A.

Its registered office in Tegucigalpa (Honduras), it was incorporated on January 11, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, 8.A., 175 shares out of a total amount of 250
that were issued. Its main activity consists on being SMS operator, based on an interconnection
network with the fixed and mobile operations of the Republic of Honduras.

Lleidanet Dominicana. 5.R.L.

Headguartered in Santo Domingo (Dominican Republic), was incorporated on June 26, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4.999 shares of a total of 5.000 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems.

Lleida SAS

With its registered office in Bogota (Colombia), it was incorporated on November 16, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 100 shares out of a total of 100 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems. On June 15, 2018
a capital increase was carried out in Lleida, SAS for an amount of 95.802 euros which
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. subscribed in full.

Lleida Chile SPA

With its registered office in Santiago (Chile), it was incorporated on March 12, 2013,
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, SA, 200 shares out of a total of 200 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunications services.

Lleida Networks India Private Limited

With its registered office in New Delhi (India), it was incorporated on January 7, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 12,500 shares out of a total of 50,000
that were issued, Its main activity is the creation of a telecommunications operator in India, as
well as offering VAS services, including SMS, MMS, and UMS and other types of messaging
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Lleidanet do Brasil Ltda

With its registered office in Sao Paulo (Brazil), it was incorporated on October 2, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 329 shares out of a total of 330 that were
issued, Its main activity is based on the provision of telecommunication services, program
development, sending of text messages and electronic mail and the provision of services of
study and analysis of computer processes in general.

Lleidanet Guatemala. Sociedad Andnima

With its registered office in Guatemala (Guatemala), it was incorporated on November 7, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4,800 shares out of a total of 6,000
issued. Its main activity is the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging services (SM5 and MMS),
carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information and communication
technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these matters.

Portabilidades Espafiolas, S A,

Incorporated on December 4, 2015, subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics S.A.,
representing 100% of the share capital of 3,000 shares for a total value of euros 3,000, Its
corporate purpose is the commercialization of services based on numerical portability data to
telecommunications operators for the routing of telephone traffic and short text messages.

Lleidanel Costa Rica Emipresa Individual de Responsabilidad Limitada

On March 31, 2016, the Parent acquires D. Francisco José Sapena Soler 100% of this Company
for the amount of 16.06 euros. lts main activity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these
matters.

Lleidanet Peru

On August 25, 2016, the Parent Company made a contribution of 268.09 euros for the
incorporation of said company. Its main activity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these
matters.
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The summary of the equity of the investees at 31 December 2018 is as follows, in euros:

i ———————— Retafned — Profitof e Ofhier Tl
Company Capital Reseryes. -enrnings; Cyear | Movements Eaquity. |
Group Companies

Lleidanetworks serveis

Telematics, LT 4,00 - (5RO, EES,EHJ% {48 288007 - (B28.605,00
Lleidanct USA Inc 39750109 - (1.0u4. 455 20 (T06TE 34) . (62T 817,72
Lleidanet Honduras, 54 (**) 941,50 - - - 941,50
LLeidanet Dominicana, SEL 10, 128,98 - {12.155,76) (£.602,31) . (10, 669,00
Lleida SAS 64,969 76 - {21 881,70} I1,263 38 - 5435004
Lleida Chile SPA (¥%) 3.256,83 - - - - 325683
Lleidanet do Brasil Lida. 1 B0 08 - {19, 729.02) (13633, 16) - (2.561,10)
Llgidanet Guatemale, 5 A (*%) 404250 - - - - 4,042 50
Portabilidades Fspaiolas, 5.4.04) 3,000,006 - (2.224 88} (977,25 - (202,13)
Lleidanet Costa Rica (¥%) 16,06 - (96,161 17,64 . (87.54)
Lizidanet Peri 268,00 - {81:23727) (23.406,00) - {104.37518)
Adfilinted companies:

Lleida Networks Indis

Frivate Limited (*) 26300 00 8341522 - (28 280.6%) - 8142520

¥ Figures at March 31, 2007
(£=) Without getivity in the pear 2008

The summary of the equity of the investees at 31 December 2017 is as follows, in euros:

' % Direet “Netvalue at  Thearetical book

Company ~ Lquity. Cost: 31122017 value 31/122017
Gronp Companies:

Llcidanctworks Serveis Telemdatics, LTD 10 4,00 4,00 (623.468,43)
Llgidanet USA Inc 100 397,591,009 397.591.09 (b6, BG4, 36)
Lleidanel Honduras, SA T 659,05 659,05 (59,05
LLeidanet Dominicana, SEL 99, 58 % 10,127,597 1012797 (6.837,25)
Lleida SAS 1009 51.956,70 31.986,70 (45.206,84)
Llcida Chile SPA FO0%% 1.256,83 3.256.83 1.526.83
Lleidanet do Brasil 1Lida 99 90% [ (L B00.00 10.800,00 (5.926,45)
Lleidanel Gualemala BO% 323400 3.234,00 3.234,00
Portabilidades Espaiiolas, S.A, 10% 3.000,00 3.000,00 T75,13
Lleidanet Cosla Ricy H30% 16,06 16,06 16,06
Lleidanet Perd 0% 268,09 268,09 (B0.848 42}
Desembolsos pendientes Lieidanet 1/SA (2.349,36) {2.349.36) =
Desembolsos pendientes Lieidanet Honduras, SA (659,05) (635,035) a
Desembolsos pendientes Licidanet Dominica, SRL {10.127,97) (1 127.97) -
Desembolsos pendientes Lleida Chile SPPA (3.256.83) (3.256,83) -

Affiliated companies:
Lleida MNetworks India rivate Limited 25% 6.575.00 $.575.00 20.356,32

Total 471.125,58 47112558 (1.383,584.36)
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NOTE 10. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Detail of long-term finanecial liabilities, is as follows, in euros:
Dbty with erédit Others
I ingtitutions linhilities Tatal
i 31122008 31422017 314202018 31422017 31/2/2008 311212017
Debits and payable
items (Mote 10,1) LIS561916 LO7L.740063 21796209 TLIRA,T2 L3TAS81,25 L143.026,35

Detail of short-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in euros:

“Debts with eredit

31/12/2018

Dehits and payable
items {Mote T0,1)

10.1) Debits and Payable Items

Cinstitutions
CAZZ00T 31122018

227283576 275205943  2.137.649,03

Others
Tiabilities

SU22017 3111202018

1,895.705,11

Total

3122017

4.410.484,79  4.647.764,54

The breakdown as of December 31, 2018 and at December 31, 2017 is as follows, in euros:

For commercial transactions;
Suppliers

Suppliers (Related parties) (Mote
19.1)

Creditors

Advances from costumers

Total balances for
commercial transactions

For non-commercial operations:
Debts with credit institutions
CHher financial liabilities

Cther debts

Debits and payable items

Staff (remuneration payable)

Total balances for
non-commercial operations

Total debts and payable items

Balance as of 31/12/2018

Long-Term

1.126:973,02
28.046,14
217.962.09

1.373.581,25

1.373.581,25

1.373.581.25

Short-Term

L462.172,12
245.540,89

168.632,73
188.622,38

2.064.968,12

2:253.038,00
19,797,746
208,91

2.345.516,67

2.345.516,67

4.410.484,79

Balance as of 31/122017

Long-Term

1.023.296.73
48,443,590
71.285.72

1.143.026.35

1.143.026,35

1.143.026,35

Short-Term

1.080.209.19
233.022,50

346.474,52
178.843,85

1.838.550,06

2.732,604,86
19.454,57
56.857,45
2.808,916,88

297,60

2.509.214,48

4.647. 764,54
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10.1.1) Debts with credit institutions

The breakdown of debts with eredit institutions as of December 31, 2018 is as follows, in euros:

|
l A Short-Term A Long-Term Total

Credit policies 1.329.790,09 - 1.329.790,09
Loans 770.761,21 1.126.973,02 1.897.734,23
Discounted effects 19.797,76 28,646, 14 48.443,90
Leasings 152 486,70 - 1 52.486,70

2.272.835,76 1.155.619.16 3.428.454,92

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions at December 31, 2017 is as follows, in euros:

' A Short-Term A Long-Term Total
Credit policies 1.342.318,02 - 1.342.318,02
Loans 1.064.033,12 1.023.296,73 2087329 85
Leasings 19.454,57 48.443,90 67, 898,47
Discounted effects 326.253,72 - 326,253,772
2.7152.050.43 1.071.740,63 3.523.800,06

Loans

The detail of the bank loans as of June 30, 2018, expressed in Euros, is the following:

Company.

Loan 21
Loan 22
Loan24 (%)
Loan 28
Loan 29
Loan 30
Loan 31
L.oan 32
[.oan 34
Loan 35
Lpan 36
[.ogan 37
Loan 38
Loan 18
Loan 40

maturity amount
12/03/2019 300.000,00
08/10/2019 250.000,00
15/10/2025 78.375,60
14/12/2019 300.000,00
25/02/2020 250.000,00
30/06/2020 150.000,00
14/12/2020 465.000,00
31/12/2020 287.619,11
31/03/2019 350.000,00
29/09/2019 500.000,00
(02/11/2022 300.000,00
01/03/2022 150,000,00
L&/06/2023 195.000,00
02/07/2023 200.000,00
28/12/2023 400.000.00
4.175.994,71

(¥ fr corresponds (o a loan granted by the COTY

Tending
elusing

16:049,12
34.214,79
341160
7730986
6l 087,50
58.003,72
192. 198,58
1TR.S30,40
38.888,.90
f6.414,22
23869725
1217500
176,390,556
184,362,33
4000000, 00

1.897.734,23
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The detail of the bank loans as of December 31, 2017, expressed in Euros, is the following;

Last Initial Pending |
Company imaturity amount closing

Loan 14 1622018 J00.000,00 117.R00,B6G
Loan 16 A0M04/2018 250,000,000 19.138,07
Loan 17 LRAT2018 FO0L000,00 38.442.23
Loan |8 102018 150,000,040 31, 250,00
Loan 19 OLA032018 300 000,00 2593871
Loan 21 120032019 JOCEC0O0,00 7942124
Loan 22 QRAGZ0S 250L000,00 17.384 56
Loan 24 (%) L510/2025 TRITS,60 TH375,60
Loan 25 05122018 400, 000,00 136,408 37
Loan 27 300420018 125.000,00 14.224.26
Loan 28 14/ 1272019 300,000,008 153,090, 09
Loan 29 250202020 250,000,00 11201723
Loan 30 25062020 50.000,00 9548926
Loan 31 14/ 122020 46550000, 00 2R5.245,54
loan 32 311202020 2B7.819.11 176.715,34
Lioan 34 31032019 F50.000,00 155.555,60
Loan 35 20002019 SO0L000,00 25547933
Loan 36 0201172022 IH0.000,00 295,3533,56
5.055.994,71 208732085

) I corresponds o a lean granted by the COTT
Credit Lines

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has credit policies granted with a total limit amounting to
1.715.000 euros (1.715.000 euros at the end of the previous year), which amount drawn at the
aforementioned date is 1.329.790,09 euros (1.342.318,02 euros at the end of the previous year).

Lines of Effects and Import Advances

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has discount policies granted with a total limit
amounting to 650.000 euros (875.000 euros at the end of the previous year), the amount of
which is as follows to date 152.486.70 euros (326.253,72 euros at the end of the previous year).

10.1.2) Other debts

Other debts mainly comprise two loans held by the Company with the Institut Catald de
Finances (ICF). The detail of these loans at the close of fiscal years 2018 is as follows, in euros:

AT Lt inii Peating
Company. maturity Camownt  elosing
Loan 1 20/04/2020 336.737,98 71.286,08
Loan 2 25/07/2013 300.000,00 211.677.61
636.737,98 282.963.69

The detail at the close of fiscal year 2017 was as follows, in euros:

_ Lt | ~Initial Pending
Company. maturity amount _ closing

Loan | 29/04/2020 336,737,958 124.750,64
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10.2) Other Information related to Financial Liabilities

a) Classification by Maturity Date

28

The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liability financial instruments as of December 31,

2018 is the following, in Euros:

Financial debis;
Drebds with credil mstiutions
Financial lease

Oither debts

Commercial ereditors
ind other payahle ifems:
Suppliers

Suppliers (related partics)
Sundry ereditors
Advances from costumers

Total

209

2,272.835,76
2A53.038.00
19,707 76

T1.680,91

2.064.968,12
1.462.172,12
245.540,80
168.632,73
188.622,38

441048479

2020,
471.525,55
451.378,55
20, 147,00

91,759.34

56328459

27702444
26812530
545914

47.206,08

J24.830,52

Matieity years

2011

24040160
2a0.401,60

47.206,08

i 1 z 1

287.607,68

137.095,10
137.095,10

21533

164.632,23

More than 5
years

2897247
2897247

2897247

Tatal

342845492
3380.001,02
45443 90

256.380.54

2.064.968,12
1462:172,12
245 540,80
168.632,73
188.622,38

5.779.812,58

The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liability financial instruments at the close of 2017
is the following, in Euros:

Financial debis:
Drebis with credit mstitutions
Financial lease

Other debis

Commercial creditors
and other pavable items:
Suppliers

Suppliers (related parties)
Sundry creditors

Totul

2008

2.752.059,43
2.732.604,86
19.454,57

5685745
1L.659,706,21
1 OR0Z06, 19

23302250
346.474,52

4.468.623,00

609.407,97
JRR.610.21
1979776

8.928.31

G19.336,28

b) Breach of Contractual Obligations

2020
2T9.410,16
2530.263,16

200147 460

9,928,31

2H9.338,47

M yeurs

201
B3.391,37
74,592,.23

#4099, 14

9.938,31

93.319,68

T1,359.29
T1.359.29

9.928,31

81.287,60

‘Mare than 5.
vy

2817184
2817184

33.698.21

G1AT0,05

Total |

3.823.800,06
3,755.901,50
6789847

130,268,920
1.659,706,21
1.080.209,19

233,022,50

647452

561377517

No incidence has been produced in breach of the obligations relating to the loans received from

third parties.

10.3) Guarantors

The Company has contracted guarantees with a financial institution for a total amount of
350.000,00 euros, a customary instrument when signing an interconnection agreement.
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NOTE 11. INFORMATION ON THE DEFERMENT OF PAYMENTS MADE TO
SUPPLIERS. THIRD ADDITIONAL PROVISION. "DUTY TO INFORM" OF LAW
15/2010, OF JULY 5

In accordance with what is indicated in the third additional provision "Duly to provide
information” of Law 15/2010, of 5 July, amending Law 3/2004, of December 29, establishing
measures to combat late payment in commercial transactions, modified in turn by the
Resolution of January 29, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Auditing of Accounts, on
the information to be included in the notes to the annual accounts in relation to the average
payment period to suppliers in commercial transactions, the following is reported:

Payments Made and Outstanding

- at the Balance Sheet Date.
Financial Year 2018  Financial YH r2017
Days Days
Average payment period 34,06 37,98
Paid operations ratio 34,89 38,94
Outstanding payments operations ratio 3042 33.97
Financlal Year 2018 Financial Year 2017
- Euros ~ Euros
Total payments paid 8.269 485,73 6.607.903.37
Total outstanding payments 1.876.345,74 1.587.706,21

NOTE 12. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE AND LEVEL OF THE RISK FROM
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Company activities are exposed to various types of financial risk, most especially credit,
liquidity and market risks (exchange rate, interest rate and other price risks).

12.1) Credit Risk

The Company's main financial assets are cash and cash balances, trade and other receivables
and investments, which represent the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

The Company's credit risk is attributable mainly lo its commercial debts. The amounts are
reflected in the net balance of provisions for bad debts, estimated by the management of the
Company based on the experience of previous years and its assessment of the current economic
environment.

12.2) Liquidity Risk

The general situation of financial markets, especially the banking market, has been particularly
unfavourable for credit claimants. The Company pays constant attention to the evolution of the
different factors that can help to solve liquidity crises, and especially to the sources of financing
and their characteristics.
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12.3) Market Risk

The general market situation during the last years has been unfavourable due to the difficult
economic situation of the environment.

12.4) Exchange Rate Risk

The Company is not exposed to a significant exchange rate risk and therefore does not trade in
hedging instruments.

12.5) Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates modify the fair value of assets and liabilities bearing a lixed interest
rate as well as the future flows of assets and liabilities referenced to a variable interest rate.

The objective of interest rate risk management is {o achieve a balance in the debt structure that

will minimize the cost of debt over the multiannual horizon with a reduced volatility in the
Profit and Loss Account.

NOTE 13. EQUITY

13.1) Share Capital

As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, the share capital amounts to 320.998.86
euros and is represented by 16.049.943 registered shares of 0,02 euros nominal each, fully
subscribed and paid up. These holdings enjoy equal political and economic rights.

As of December 31, 2018, there are no companies with a direct or indirect stake equal to or
greater than 10% of the share capital,

As of December 31, 2017, the companies with a direct or indirect stake equal to or greater than
10% of the share capital were as follows:

SESD, FCR 3.413.680 21.27%

Capital Increase

By virtue of the admission to trading on the Alternative Stock Market, the Parent Company
carried out the following transactions in its share capital:

- On June 1, 2015, a General Shareholders' Meeting resolved to split the shares of the Parent
Company by reducing the par value of the shares by 60,10 euros at a nominal value of
0,02 euros per share. In this operation, 3.005 shares were generated for each old share,
with the capital stock being formed by 11.812.655 shares with a nominal value of each
share at nominal 0,02 euros each.
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- On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Shareholders' Meeting to modify the system
of representation of the shares, transforming the nominative securitics representing the
shares in which the Parent Company's capital is divided into account entries.

- On June 1, 2015, it was resolved by means of a General Meeting of Shareholders to
modify the transmission regime of the shares of the Parent Company, passing this transfer
of shares to be free and not subject to consent or authorization by the Company nor by
shareholders

- On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Meeting of Shareholders to request the
incorporation in the segment of Companies in Expansion of the Alternative Stock Market
of all the shares representing the Parent Company.

- On September 30, 2015, it was agreed to increase the Parent Company's Capital Stock by
84.745,78 euros through the issuance of 4.237.288 shares with a nominal value of 0,02
euros and an issue premium of 1,16 euros per share. This extension is fully subscribed
and disbursed.

13.2) Reserves

The breakdown for Reserves is as follows, in euros:

31/12/2018 314122017
Legal Reserve 47.503,72 47.503,72
Voluntary Reserves 1.394.506,07 |.418.661,70
1.442.009,79 1.466.165,42

a) Legal Reserve

The Legal Reserve is restricted with regard to its use, which is determined by a variety of legal
provisions. In accordance with the Law Capital Companies, trading companies which obtain
profits under this legal form are obliged to provide the reserve with 10% of these, until the
constituted reserve fund reaches one fifth of the subscribed share capital. The purposes of the
legal reserve are the compensation of losses or the increase of capital by the exceeding part of
the 10% of the capital already increased, as well as its distribution to the shareholders in case
of liquidation. At December 31, 2018, the Legal Reserve was not fully endowed.

13.3) Issue Premium

This reserve amounted to 5.244.344,28 euros, of which 329.090,20 euros arose as a result of
the capital increase carried out in 2007 and 4.915.254,08 euros arose as a result of the capital
increase carried out in the 2015 exercise for the departure of the Parent Company to the
Alternative Stock Market. It has the same restrictions and can be used for the same purposes as
voluntary reserves, including their conversion into share capital.
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13.4) Own Shares

The Board of Shareholders of the Parent Company agreed on June 1, 2015 to authorize the
Parent Company's Board of Directors for the derivative acquisition of treasury shares under the
terms established by current legislation. These acquisitions of own shares have been made
through the liquidity provider GYC Gaesco Valores SV, §.A, making available a total value of
1.200.000 euros to be able to carry out transactions of own shares, in accordance with the
provisions of the Alternative Market and are valued at acquisition cost.

As of December 31, 2018, the Parent Company holds own shares for an amount of 954.28?,?3
euros (935,557,23 euros at the end of the previous year).

NOTE 14. FOREIGN CURRENCY

The most significant foreign currency balances as of December 31, 2018, totalized in euros and
broken down into their foreign currency equivalent, are as follows:

. TUROS “usn Gne AR
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debtors and other pecounts 140575 184311 14,72
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade creditors and other payeble accounts B0.842,04 95.590,68 213857 62.809,12

The most significant foreign currency balances as of December 31, 2017, totalized in euros and
broken down into their foreign currency equivalent, were as follows:

EUROS USD- GhP
CURRENT ASSLETS
Trade deblors and olher aecounts 37,192,956 44,197,469 267.3%
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade creditors and other payable accounts 51.380,74 60,724,582
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NOTE 15. TAX SITUATION

The following is the breakdown of the balances with the Tax Authorities as of December 31,
2018 and 2017 in Ewros:

31/12/2018 31/12/2017

Active Payable Active  Payabl¢
Non Current:
Deferved tax assets 298095 - 138, 100,65 -
Current;
Value Added Tax 3.257.82 38.711,70 2.613,78 13.014.27
Cirants to be paid (*) 3493278 - 27.732.78 -
Income Tax retentions - 36.761,47 - 40.470,17
Social Security bodies 6.400,62 54.011,04 7.768,09 -
Income tax 237503 - - 44 495,00

46.966.25 129.484,21 38.114,65 07.979,44

() The amount of this Teading relates malnly to a gramt received in the previons year for the acquistiion of fixed assets ad
miseellaneons service expenses. (See Nofe 9]

Tax Matters

In accordance with cuirent legislation, tax payments cannot be considered final until they have
been inspected by the tax authorities, or until the statute barring period of four years has passed.

At December 31, 2018, the Company has all the taxes to which it is subject from 2014 to 2018
open for inspection by the tax authorities. Consequently, on the occasion of possible
inspections, additional liabilities may arise to those recorded by the Company. However, the
directors of the Company and its tax advisers consider that any such liabilities would not be
material to the annual accounts taken as a whole.

Corporate Income Tax

The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the year 2018 with the tax base
of the profit tax is:

Profit and Loss Account
Financinl year's enrnings (After taxes) (208.753,80)
Increases Decreases Net effect
Profit Tax 135.119,70 - 13511970
Permanent differences 614.112,91 - 61411291
Offset of negative tax bases (540.478,81)

Taxable income (tax result) -
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The conciliation u‘fﬂm' net amount of income and expenses for the year 2017 with the tax base
of the profit tax is;

Financial year’s earnings (After taxes) (252,893,009}

Profit Tax . - "
Permanent differences 604.143,32 - 604.143,32
Offset of negative tax bases (351,250,23)
Taxuble income (tax result) i

Charge at 25 % of Taxable Income - -
Deduclions = -

Net tax payable :; e
Less: withholdings and payments. {42.40) (6.358.22)
Tax payable (4240) (6.358,22)

The main components of corporate income tax expense are as follows:

Deferred tax 135.119.70 :

Total 13511970 ;

The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during financial year 2018 is detailed
‘below in euros:

Deferred tax nssefs: ) B _
Tax credits: 138, 100,65 (135.119,70) 298005

The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during financial year 2017 is detailed
below in euros:

Deferred tax assefs: o
Taxcredits 138, 100,65 - 138,100,635
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Tax Loss Carry forwards

Part of the tax base credits have been recognised, since they meet the requirements established
by current legislation for their recognition and since there are no doubts as to the Group's ability
to generate future taxable profits that will enable it to be recovered. The total amount capitalized
in this concept is 2,980,95 euros, The detail of the tax loss carry forwards to be offset in future

years is as follows:

Year of Origin

2016
207

Deductions pending to apply

Amount

1.330.543,36
138.100,65

1.468,644,01

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has the following deductions to apply:

Year of Origin

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
20135
2016
2017
2018

NOTE 16. INCOME AND EXPENSES

a) Supplies

~Amount

13.460,45

71.214,06

75.820,66
201.266,41
172.071,08
181.164,26
214.961,29
251,779,01

90,887,05
127,371,20
369,824,03
188,991 46
182,112,92
171.929,09

2,312.852,97

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros:

Consumption of merchandise
Mazional

Intracommunity scquisitions
Imports

2018
2R32.738,70
1. 861,342,099
1.571.901.08

6.286.002,77

2017
2.126:479,62

783.784,96
1.767.077.73

467734231
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b) Social Security

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros:

2018 2017 '
Social Security paid by the Company 477.065,88 43599839
Other social expenses 108.154,33 126.274,82
Employee welfare expenses 585.220.21 562.273.21

¢) Financial Results

This heading in the Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros:

2018 2017 |

Financial incomes
Financial incomes fom group companies 40.026,78 45480,58
Other financial incomes 465,50 17,182,24
40.492,28 62.662,82

Financial expenses
For debts with credit institutions (91.219.17) (96.184,56)
(91.219,17) (26.184,56)
Change in fair value of financial instruments (33.441.01) (8.467.07)
Exchange differences (5382.127,69) (573.000,00)
Financial Result Positive / (Negative) (666.295,59) (616.988,81)

NOTE 17, INFORMATION ON THE ENVIRONMENT

The Company has no assets, nor has it incurred expenses, aimed at minimizing the
environmental impact and protecting and improving the environment. There are likewise no
provisions for risks and expenses and no contingencies relating to protection and improvement
of the environment.

NOTE 18, EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Following December 31, 2018, there were no relevant events affecting the Company annual
accounts on that date.
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19.2) Transactions with Related Parties

The most significant transactions carried out with associated parties at financial year 2018 are
as follows, in Euros:

[Operation with velated LLEIDA LLEIDA 'LLEIDA NET m,ﬂ;ln’ﬁ?ﬂ ‘LLEIDANET RET.
[pirties in the year ~ NETUSA  NETUK COLOMBIA PER  DOMINICANA |
Sqiles 387.107.24 2].661,25 119,320,735 35T AT 751,80
Purchases 10.512,65 - - » -
[rerest incomes 11.901,74 22,147,10 1.650,03 345413 H72,78

The most significant transactions carried out with associated parties at financial year 2017 are
as follows, in Euros:

Operation with related _LLEIDA LLEIDA LLEIDA NET  LLEIDANET REP.
parties in the year NET USA ‘NET UK. COLOMBIA DOMINICANA
Sales 22647082 10,852,315 118.433,59 734,93
Purchases 107.843.67 — - a
Inferest incomes 19.478,99 21.051.34 4.427.75 167217

19.3) Balances and Transactions with the Directors of the Parent Company and Senior
Executives

The remuneration accrued during the financial year 2018 by the Board of Directors amounted
to 72.000 euros (84.750 euros in the previous year).

The Senior Management tasks are performed by two members of the same Board of Directors,
with compensation for salaries and wages amounting to 219.361,07 euros (176.895,88 euros in
the previous year).

Asof December 31, 2018 and 2017, there are no credits or advances with the Board of Directors
of the Parent Company, as well as commitments for pension supplements, guarantees or

guarantees granted in its favour.

Other Information Reparding the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Capital Companies Law, it is reported that the members of the Management
Body do not hold interests in other companies with the same, similar or complementary
corporate purpose.

In accordance with the above-mentioned Law Capital Companies, it is also reported that the
members of the Board have carried out no activity, on their own behalf or on behalf of others,
with the Company, which may be considered to be not in accordance with normal trading and
not carried out under normal market conditions.
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NOTE 20. OTHER INFORMATION

The average number of employees during the financial year 2018 and 2017, which does not
differ significantly from the number of employees at the end of the year, broken down by
category and sex, is as follows:

. 2014 207
Disibility: Digabilify:
greater thn greater than
. . : orequalto B : “or equal to
Men Women Total L33 Men “Women Toial ~33%
Senior Executives I 1 2 - | 1 2 -
Administration . 4 i 1 - 4 4 1
Commercial 3 Iy 15 - i} 7 13 -
Production 21 i 26 - 17 4 21
M aintenance - 2 2 - . 2 2 -
Reception - 5 3 - - 4 4
Husiness development 2 4 6 - 2 5 1 -
Complinnce - i . = o - - -
Hunan Resources - | 1 - - 1 1 -
Inleflectusl Property - I | ~ - - - -
TOTAL 29 35 fll 1 i 28 54 1

The amount of the fees accrued for the audit services of the Annual Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to 13.150 euros. (12,800 euros in the previous year). The amount
of the fees for other verification services corresponding to the limited review of the interim
financial statements amounted to 9.535 euros. Likewise, the fees accrued for other services
corresponding to the completion of the transfer pricing dossier amounted to 2.000 euros.

It is reported that during the year the Company paid the premium corresponding to the civil
liability policy that would eventually cover the damages caused to third parties by acts or
omissions related to the performance of their functions. The premium amounted to 19.107 euros
(19,107 euros in the previous year).

NOTE 21. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The distribution of the net turnover corresponding to the Company’s ordinary activities, by
category and/or business segmenl, is shown below:

T W e 2018 E— )

‘Busiiess Areas (figures in thousands of "o By

‘euros) _ ‘Euros % Luros Y% a
Certified elecironic communicalions 1.868 15,47% 1.543 15,97%
SMS Soelulions G260 T6,67% 7288 75 48%
Data Validation 950 T.86% 825 B,53%
Total 12.078 100 0.656 10055

The breakdown, by geographical market, of the net turnover relating to the Company's ordinary
activities is as follows:

LA B 2018 o 2017
Dreseription of the: geographic market Euros: U Euros
Mational 5.073.172,35 49,45% 5.577.991,62 ST
European Union 3.519.619,00 25,15% 2,522.047.72 26,12%
Rest of the World 2.585.230,77 21,4084 1.555.740,55 16,11%

Total 12.078.022,12 0% 9.655, 779,89 100%
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LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2018

In compliance with the provisions of the Spanish Companies Act, the Board of Directors hereby
submits the directors' report for the year in order to complement, expand and comment on the
balance sheet, the profit and loss account and the report corresponding to fiscal year 2018.

1. EVOLUTION OF BUSINESS

For the company, 2018 was a year with significant growth rates in both sales and EBITDA.

Sales have grown in the SaaS line by 19%, consolidating Lleida.net as a reference in the
contracting and notification sector. The continuous investment in R&D processes has allowed
us to expand the range of services offered, as well as to improve the existing ones. The diversity
of the range of products and the adaptability of the company to the needs of customers has
allowed it to reach new customers and develop standard products for lower volume customers.

Internally developed processes are patented globally and create entry barriers to competition.
Additionally, the European homologation of electronic delivery products certified by EIDAS,
opens a range of possibilities at European level, Lleida.net being the only Spanish company
that has the homologation and the Sixth at European level.

The business line that has grown the most this year is the line of SMS solutions for Wholesale.
With a growth rate of 49%, which represents an increase of more than 2.2 million euros with
respect to the previous year, it reflects that Lleida.net has become a key player in the sector.
The technology developed internally has allowed to take advantage of business opportunities.
The new international destination routes negotiated by the team have turned Lleida.net into a
reference company within the market.

Soles by business lines - Thousands of eurt 2017 2018 Var. £ Var.% [
Saas Services 2,368 2.818 450 19%
SIS Solutions 2.830 2.636 -184 -T%
1CX WHOLESALE Solutions 4,458 6.624 2,166 49%
Total i 9,656 12.078 2.422 25%
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Dota in Thousonds of Euros 2017 2018 Var. € Var.% ]
Sales 9.656 12.078 2.422 25%
Cost of Sales (4.677) [6.286) 1.609 34%
Gross Margin 4.979 5.792 813 16%
Payrol| {2.198) (2.400) 202 g
External Services {2.157) 12.263) 106 5%
Other incomes 43 23 (20) -47%
Activations 849 787 (62) - 7%
EBITDA 1.516 1.239 423 28%
Amortizations {1.073) {1.148) 75 754
indemnities (77) (198) 121 157%
Profit from operations 366 593 227 b62%
Financial Net Result (35) {52} 17 9%
Impairment and gains or losses on dispos: {575} (582) 7 1%
Exchange Rate Differences {9) (33) 24 267%
Profit before tax (253) (74) 179 71%

The Gross Margin has increased by 16%, 813 compared to 2017, due to the increase in sales.
The gross margin on sales stands at 48% while in 2017 it was 51.6%. The decrease is caused
by the greater weight of Wholesale SMS sales over total sales.

In 2018, the company made a strong effort to attract talent. The average workforce has increased
by 10 people, representing 19% over the previous year and has led to a 9% increase in cost. The
main areas reinforced were the R&D&I department with the incorporation of personnel with
higher degrees and the constitution of the compliance and Intellectual Properties departments.

External services expenses rose by 97 thousand euros this year, mainly due to the necessary
consultancy and audit costs to obtain EIDAS approval and the costs of incorporating Lleida.net
shares into trading on Euronmext Growth in Paris, Additionally, an R&D collaboration
amounting to more than 100 thousand euros has been allocated.

EBITA reached 1.9 million euros. accounting for 16% of sales, deriving both from the increase
in sales and from more exhaustive cost control. Following the criterion of prudence, the group
has opted to activate a lower amount of R&D activities in order to avoid possible fiscal
contingencies, although the pace of R&D expenditure is maintained. This is the tenth quarter
that the Group has positive EBITDA.

The result of the company has increased by 179 thousand euros, representing an increase of
71% despite the provision of participation and loans to Lleida.net USA. The company,
following the criterion of prudence, has opted to provision part of the investment made in the
subsidiary. The slower process of obtaining profits, and due to the fact that international
commercial efforts have focused more intensely on Europe, Latin America and Africa, has led
to this measure, although the United States continues to be a target market for the period 2019
and 2020.
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2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE CLOSURE

Subsequent to December 31, 2018 and up to the date of preparation of this Directors' Report,
there have been no subsequent events, in addition to those already mentioned in the Notes to
the annual accounts, which highlight circumstances that already existed at December 31, 2018
and which, due to the importance of their economic impact, should lead to adjustments in the
financial statements or modifications to the information contained in the Explanatory Notes.

Nor are there any subsequent evenis, other than those already mentioned in the Explanatory
Notes, that demonstrate conditions that did not exist at December 31, 2018 and that are of such
importance that they require additional information in the Explanatory Notes to the annual
accounts.

3. SUSCEPTIBLE EVOLUTION OF SOCIETY

The forecasts for 2019 are lo increase the company's gross margin in euros, reinforcing sales of
certified products through the consolidation of products at an international level.

4. R&D ACTIVITIES

In 2018 the Company has invested 787 thousand euros in research activities which have focused
mainly on the development of a qualified system of certified electronic delivery based on the
verification of data in situ.

5. OPERATIONS WITH OWN SHARES

In accordance with the regulations of the Alternative Stock Market, the company signed a
liquidity agreement with the placing bank as part of its market launch. This agreement
establishes both the delivery of a certain amount of own shares and the deposit of an amount of
cash. The objective of this contract is to allow investors to trade the company's shares, ensuring
that any interested person has the possibility of buying or selling shares.

The Board of Directors on August 12, 2016 approved the acquisition of own shares with a
maximum amount of 200 thousand euros, The programme was extended until 12 August 2018
following the agreement of the Board of Directors on August 7, 2017.

At December 31, the company held 992.257 shares with a valuation on that date of 930.068.51
euros, representing 6.18% of the shares of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemitics, S.A.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During 2018 the Company has not used instruments related to financial derivatives.

7. DEFERRALS OF PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

Information on deferrals of payment to suppliers is shown in the annual accounts in Note 11,

ok kg kd okt bt



PREPARATION OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND DIRECTOR'S REPORT

In compliance with company law, the Board of Directors of LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. draws up the Annual Accounts and the Director's Report for the financial
year ended December 31, 2018, which comprises the attached pages number 1 to 46.

Barcelona, March 25, 2019
Board of Directors

Mr. Francisco Sapena Soler T M Mﬁl‘cos Gallardo Meseguer
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Secretary

Mr. Migu E::;izﬁlﬁias Mr. Antonio Lépez Wel Castillo
Indepen rector Independent Director
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Mrs. Arrate Maria Usandizaga Ruiz
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‘Investor Group composed of Instityt Finances Capital,
Sepi Desarrollo Empresarial, S.A., +7S.G.ELC., S.AU.
Empresa Nacional de Innovacién, S.M.E., S.A, Repres'ented by
& Cantabro Catalana de Inversiones, S.A. Mr, Emilio Gémez Jané
represented by External Director

Mr, Jorge Sainz de Vicufia
External Director
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REPORT ON THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM FOR THE
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A

Under the provisions of Article17 of the Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 regarding market abuse
and article 228 of the modified text of the Spanish Stock Market Act, approved by Spanish Royal
Legislative Decree 4/2015, of 23 October and related provisions, as well as Circular 15/2016 of
the Spanish Alternative Investment Market (hereinafter “MAB”),on information to be provided
by Expansion Companies herewith the report on the Organizational Structure and Internal
Control Systems for Financial Information of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, SA and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter "Lleida.net", "Lleida Group" The "Company" or the "Company"), is
published and approved by the Audit Commission and ratified by the Board of Directors at its
meeting on March 25, 2019.

Lleida, 9 April 2019
Francisco Sapena Soler

Chief executive officer of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A
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1. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. is a limited liability company with an indefinite
duration and with registered office in Madrid (Spain) Calle General Lacy 42, ground floor
according to the agreement of the Board of Directors dated 7 October 2017, with VAT
number A25345331.

Previously it was incorporated as a Limited Liability Company for an indefinite period,
under the name of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, SL by means of a document
authorized by the Public Notary of Lleida, Mr. Antonio Rico Morales, Notary of the
Barcelona Bar Association, on 30 January 1995, under number 547 of its protocol.

The Company is registered in the Mercantile Registry of Lleida, from 13 March 1995,
motivating the 1st registration of sheet L6657corresponding to page 137 of volume 355.
Adapted its Bylaws to the current Law of Limited Liability Companies in writing of 12
June 2000, corrected by another of 3 November 2000, all authorized by the Notary of
Lleida, Mr. Antonio Rico Morales, increased its capital by the Notary of Lleida, increased
its capital in writing authorized by the Notary of Lleida, Mr. Pablo Gémez Claveria, on 21
October 2004 and once again increased its capital in writing authorized by the
aforementioned Notary of Lleida, Mr. Gdmez,16 August , 2006 and registered in the
Mercantile Registry of Lleida, in volume 355, page 141, page number L-6.657.

On 30June 2011, the Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting unanimously agreed
to transform the company into a Public Limited Company, being formalized in a public
document by virtue of a public deed dated 12 December 2011 by means of a document
issued by the Public Notary of Catalonia, Mr. Pablo Gédmez Claveria with the number
3357 of his protocol and registered on February 17, 2012 in the Mercantile Registry of
Lleida in Volume 355, Page 145, Sheet L6.657 and registration 8th.

On 1June 2015, the Company approved at the Shareholders’ Meeting the request for
incorporation into the Alternative Stock Market of all the shares of the Company.

On 7 October 2015, the Board of Directors of Bolsas y Mercados Espaiioles, Sistemas de
Negociacion S.A. approved the incorporation of 16.049.943 shares A 0,02 euros’
nominal value each into the segment of companies in expansion of the Alternative Stock
Market, effective as of 19 October 2015.

On 14 December 2019, the Euronext Admission Committee accepts the incorporation
of the shares of Lleida.net in Euronext Growth as of 19 December 2019

The corporate purpose of Lleida.net is expressed in article 2 of its Bylaws, the text of
which is literally transcribed below

Article 2°: Corporate purpose

Electronic and information technology consulting on different matters through
professionals and electronic and computing mechanisms for companies and services.
Dissemination of electronic systems through activities and publications. The provision
of telecommunications services .
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Organizational structure.

The departments that make up the company are detailed below. All Chief Officers
meet monthly to discuss the main lines of action of the company and propose its
approval by the Board of Directors.

Executive

Director

and CEO
1

Human
Resources
Department

Business
Development
Department

Intelectual
Property
Department

Project
Management
Department

Interconnectiol
Department

IT
Department

| Sales |

Spain Sales
Department

LATAM Sales
Department

(

EMEA Sales
Department

Market
Development
Department

Customer

Service
Department

The financial information is prepared by the Financial Department and reviewed by the
Executive Director, although the final responsibility for its preparation rests with the
Board of Directors.

Below are the different bodies and functions on which have the main responsibility for

the implementation and the maintenance of a correct and effective System of Internal
Control of Information

Board of Directors:

The company's management and representation in court and out of court and in all
actions included in the corporate object correspond to the Board of Directors, which
shall act together without prejudice to any delegations or powers of attorney granted.
In addition to the powers mentioned in the previous paragraph, the responsibility of
the members of the Board of Directors is to have the appropriate commitment to
guarantee taking the necessary measures to head the right direction and the control of
the Company, which includes the supervision and understanding of the financial
information reported to the markets, to the shareholders, as well as the internal
control of the Company.

The Board of Directors is made up of :
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Francisco Sapena Soler - Executive Director

He studied Technical Agricultural Engineering, specialising in Horticulture and
Gardening at the University of Lleida and post graduate in Telematics at the UPC.
Passionate about new technologies and the Internet. President of IRC Hispano for 9
years At present he is Chief Executive and main Shareholder of Lleida.net. He is
considered, without hesitating, the alma mater of the company.

EMILI GOMEZ JANE on behalf of the Institut Catala de Finances Capital , S.A SGEIC,
External Director

Director of Venture Capital at ICF, Industrial Engineer and MBA from the UPC.
Extensive experience in investment operations (different positions in Venture Capital
Funds) with specialization in technology companies and with a strong innovation
component, and member of the Board of Directors of different companies, including
some listed companies, AB-Biotics and Agile. In addition to the professional activity, he
has also developed teaching activities as MBA professor of the University of
Barcelona and the Pompeu Fabra University

Marcos Gallardo- External director

Founder and managing partner of Lexing Spain in Barcelona. Admitted to the
Barcelona Bar Association in 1998 . President of the Commission on Privacy and Rights
of the Digital Person (International Association of Lawyers / Union International des
Avocats) . Vice-President of the Lexing ® network, the first global network of law firms
specializing in advanced technology law currently composed of 22 offices located in 25
countries in Europe, America, Africa and Asia. Vice-President of the Commission on
Intellectual Property (Barcelona Bar Association - ICAB).

Member of the Board of Directors of several multinational companies in the
telecommunications and Internet industry.

Ranked by Who's Who Legal in 2012, 2013 and 2014 as being among the world’s
leading Internet &e commerce& Data protection lawyer

Arrate Usandizaga- Executive Director

Chief Administrative Office Graduate in Administration and Business Management,
Master in finance and accounting at the University of Deusto. After some years at Price
Waterhouse Coopers as Assurance (audit) supervisor she reached Lleida.net to
coordinate the audit department and risks. Currently she is the Chief Financial officer
of the Company.



é,} Lleida.net

La Primera Operadora Certificadora

Miguel Pérez Subias - Independent director

Senior Telecommunications Engineer, ETSIT at the Polytechnic University of Madrid
and Master in Business Management , INESE. He reconciles his position as President of
the Internet Users Association (www.AUl.es) with an intense professional activity as a
consultant specialized in Internet and in the new technologies.

In 1993, he edited and promoted, the first magazine published in Spain dedicated to
Internet (Click Magazine) and two years later he founded the Association of Internet
Users, a non-profit organization, of which he is President.

Among the most relevant initiatives, Internet World Conference (Madrid 1996-2005)
and Expolnternet (Barcelona 1997-2001), the launch of World Information Society Day:
Internet Day (Tunisia 2005), Spanish neutral node EspaNIX (Madrid 1997) and the
creation of the Spanish Internet Governance Forum (Madrid 2008).

Antonio Lopez del Castillo - Independent Director

Consultant in Telecommunications and sourcing with long experience as Director of
Purchases at Telefénica de Espafa and Vivo, Telefonica Group's in Brazil.

During his professional career with Telefdnica, he has participated in relevant projects
such as the Barcelona 92 Olympic Telecommunication Planning, the implementation of
the first High Speed Metropolitan Area Network for Interconnection of University
Institutions and Hospitals in Barcelona, or the implementation in the Rigograndense
Company of Telecommunications (CRT) of Sao Paulo of the Advanced Procurement
System after privatization, being responsible for the award of more than 30,000
million reales from1998 to 2002.

Technical Director of the Spanish versions of the magazines: Tele.Com, Data
Communication, LAN Times and founder of Global Telecommunications.

Director of the New Technologies course at Instituto Catalan, director of Summer
University Sitges courses at UNTEC , as well as Director of the Postgraduate Course in
Multimedia and Telecommunications conducted by the Universitat Autonoma de
Barcelona.

Jordi Carbonell i Sebarroja- Independent Director
Counsel and Advisor of the Parque Cientifico y Tecnoldgico Agroalimentario de Lleida

(PCIiTAL). Representative in the Spanish Association of Technological Parks (APTE) and
in the World Association (IASP). Business advisor of the Park and Clusters of Lleida.
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From 2005 to 2006 he was Secretary of Industry and Energy of the Department of
Labour and Industry of the Generalitat of Catalonia and in the elections of the
Parliament of Catalonia of 2003 was chosen deputy for the province of Lleida.

From 1996 to 2003, Director General of ACTEL, S.C.L, Cooperative of second degree of
which 130 Cooperatives of Lleida are part, receiving in 2003 the Award for Business
Innovation of the Generalitat of Catalonia.

Between 1993 and 1996 he was Civil Governor of Lleida and member of the
negotiating team of the entry of Spain into the European Economic Community (1984-
1986). He was also General Technical Secretary of the Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries
and Food (1982-1988).

Jorge Sainz de Vicuha Barroso

Manager of investee companies. Experience in remediation and enhancement as
General Manager / CEO in the affiliated companies, and with a wide experience in
negotiations and sales processes, from the preparation of sales notes to the closing,
through NDA's, management of offers, due diligence's, and contracts, in coordination
with legal, fiscal and labour advisors.

The Audit Commission

According to the Company's Bylaws and the Board of Directors regulations the Audit
Commission has to evaluate the accounting verification system of the Company,
ensuring the independence of the external auditor and reviewing the internal control
systems of the Company financial information.

Notwithstanding any other duties assigned at any given time by the Board of Directors,
the Audit Commission shall carry out the following basic duties:

- Reporting to the General Meeting of Shareholders on matters raised by the
shareholders within their competence.

- Proposing the appointment of external account auditors as indicated in
article 264 of the Spanish Corporate Enterprises Act as well as their
contract conditions, the scope of their professional mandates and, as
applicable, their revocation or non-revocation to the Board of Directors for
submission to the General Meeting of Shareholders. In order to ensure the
independence of external auditors, the Company must communicate the
change of auditor in a Relevant Event to the governing body of the Spanish
Alternative Investment Market.

- Supervising internal auditing systems; ensuring their independence and
effectiveness.
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- Reviewing the Company's accounts, supervising compliance with all legal
requirements and the proper application of accounting principles, seeking
direct collaboration from external and internal auditors

- Knowing and supervising the preparation and integrity of the financial
information concerning the Company and, when applicable, reviewing
compliance with regulatory requirements and the correct application of
accounting principles; knowing and supervising the Company's internal
control systems, verifying their suitability and integrity; and reviewing the
appointing or replacement of those responsible.

- Regularly review internal control and risk management systems so the
main risks are identified, managed and adequately reported.

- Carrying out the relations with external auditors to receive information on
matters that may pose a risk to the independence thereof an, any other
matters related to the account auditing process and other communications
provided for by account auditing laws and technical audit standards.

- Supervising compliance with the audit contract, ensuring that the opinions
of the annual accounts and main content of audit reports are written
clearly and accurately as well as evaluating the results of each Audit.

- Reviewing any periodical financial information that the Board should
provide to the markets and to its supervisory bodies, ensuring all mid-term
accounts are prepared under the same accounting criteria as annual
accounts.

- Reporting to the Board of Directors prior to the adoption of the
corresponding decisions on all matters applicable by law, the by-laws, the
regulations for the board of directors and in particular on the following
topics: (i) the financial information the Company must periodically make
public; (ii) the creation or acquisition of stakes in special entities or entities
registered in offshore countries as well as any other transaction or
operation of a similar nature which may undermine the group's
transparency due to the complexity; and (iii) Related Party Transactions.

Currently, the Audit Commission is made up of two independent directors, and
they meet at least every six months and whenever their chairman calls. In

2018, the Committee met twice.

c) Board of Directors

It consists of the Executive Director and those responsible for the different
departments of the company.

The meeting is convened at least once a month, in order to coordinate the different
key activities of Lleida.net. The lines of action are defined both in the short and
medium term in order to achieve the objectives set by the Board of Directors and to
resolve the setbacks or problems that may have arisen.
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All the areas of the company are covered, and each chief officer makes a report of the
issues to address at the meeting . If certain information is detected that should be
shared with the market, it would be communicated by the executive director to the
Board of Directors .

Finance Department

The Finance Department is responsible for implementing a correct control system for
financial information on day-to-day basis. It deals with the accounting of the parent
company and controls the reporting of the subsidiary companies. Their functions
include the preparation of the necessary reports for decision making by the Board of
Directors, as well as the publication of the information required by the markets.

External audit

The annual accounts, both individual and consolidated of Lleida.net are reviewed by
BDO auditors, a renowned prestige auditing firm Since 2016, a limited review is also
carried out for the period between 1 January and 30 June , which is reviewed by the

same auditing firm.

CONTROL SYSTEMS OF THE COMPANY

The mechanisms of Internal Control and Risk Management Related to the financial
information are the responsibility of the Audit Committee As set by the regulations of
the Board of Directors, they are further reviewed and supervised by the Board of
Directors. The main control mechanisms are:

3.1 Annual budgets:

The Management team makes the annual budgets of the group and they should
be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors

Subsequently, a monthly control of deviations and its compliance is carried out,
which is reviewed by the Board of Directors and is responsible for taking the
appropriate measures and the main lines of action.

3.2 Internal control measure:

Lleida.net has defined the following financial processes as high-level control areas
to comply with the internal control systems of the financial information:

- Sales, customer billing and recovery management

- Consolidation and reporting of group companies

- Investments inR+ D +i

- Investments in Property, Plant and Equipment

- Treasury



L
<y

Lleida.net

La Primera Operadora Certificadora

- Purchases and accounts to pay
- Taxes

- Human Resources

- Financial closing

The main control measures by risk area are the following:

a) Sales, customer billing and recovery management

On a monthly basis, the detail of the invoices to be issued is generated, reviewed
by the billing manager and the automatic process is launched, which allows:

- Generate entries into the accounts of entries of sales

- Send invoices to customers

- Creation of the files that are sent to the commercial managers, Chief
Officers and to the Chief administrative Officer for the monitoring of the
monthly figures

The person in charge of treasury supervises the collections of payments of
clients and the relevant invoices are insured before a credit insurance company
to prevent defaults

On a weekly basis, a follow-up is carried out to discuss about the situation of the

collections along with the sales managers

The collections are reconciled weekly by the Financial Department

The management system used by the company to control its accounting systems
has defined profiles for each user to access.

b) Consolidation and reporting:

The company has accounting and tax advisors in each of the countries where
the group has a registered company. These advisors are responsible for
sending monthly the figures of the subsidiary so that it can be reviewed from
the parent company by the Administration Department. Advisors do not have
access to the bank accounts of the subsidiaries and they only have limited
powers to carry out administrative procedures before the public
administration of each country.

R+D Investment

The R & D projects carried out by the company have an annual budget, which
is controlled both by the technical department director and by the
Administration department. All the activity carried out in R & D must be set
within the annual action plan, and if it is an extraordinary collaboration it
must be approved by the Chief Technical Officer.
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d) Investment in tangible fixed assets:

In this area, the most significant amount corresponds to the investments
made in servers and IT equipment. An annual budget is made jointly between
the technical department and the financial department, analysing the annual
requirements and the execution process is controlled every month.

e) Treasury:

The person in charge of the Treasury must control on a daily basis the
balances of the different financial instruments that the company has. The
Executive Director is the person who has powers to make the corresponding
wire transfers. From Treasury, the payments files are drafted and reviewed by
the Financial Director for its execution by the General Director.

The bank accounts of the different subsidiaries are controlled by the parent's
staff.

On a weekly basis a summary is made by the Treasury, with the balances that
each instrument counts, as well as the main incomes and expenditures made
from each account and sent both to the Financial Director and to the
Executive Director for their supervision.

The bank accounts are reconciled by the Financial department, and the staff
from the Treasury Department prepares the payment files.

f)  Purchases and payable accounts

The consumptions of suppliers go directly into the management ERP. The
rates of the suppliers are updated automatically by the same system
whenever a routing price is modified. The Financial department verifies
usually on a monthly basis ,that the invoices actually correspond to the
consumptions entered into the ERP. If this is the case, the consumption is
validated, and the accounting entries of the purchase are automatically made.
In the event of any discrepancy, the company has a protocol for action, where
the discrepancy is communicated to the supplier and the causes are analysed
and communicated to the interconnection department responsible for the
purchases.

Payments with the main providers, usually operators, are made through
netting. The purchase and sale invoices are compensated. The same system
automatically generates this netting that is sent to the provider for its



&

/4

f)

Lleida.net

La Primera Operadora Certificadora

acceptance. Once accepted by the supplier, it is included in the next payment
remittance.

The other payments are mainly commercial expenses that are paid by
employees with their personal credit cards. Every month an expense sheet is
made, where all the supporting documents are included and must first be
approved by its direct director and then by the Financial department. The
amounts are paid by wire transfer, that are included in the payment file.

The company also has direct debits that corresponds to lease and supply
payments. Such charges are reconciled weekly with the debits in the bank

account

Taxes:

The Company internally manages the presentation of monthly taxes, which are
automatically downloaded from the ERP. The documents are drafted by the
Administration department for its digital signature by the Executive Director, who
is the person who has the power to submit them.

In addition, the company has global advisors who inform them of all possible
amendments to the regulations affecting them.

g

Human Resources:

Human capital is a key element for the success of Lleida.net. Human
Resources department manages both current staff and new recruits managing
both the development of each individual and their careers.

The desired profile for the new employees is set in collaboration with the
director of the department concerned The job description is posted in the
company's social media profiles and job sites, and a first selection is made
based on the candidates training and experience. Afterwards, a first interview
with Human Resources Chief Officer is conducted and a performance test is
carried out. The 3 best candidates are interviewed to make the final
selection.

The Chief Human Resources Officer also manages salary payments and
assesses together with the Head of the department the revenues each
employee must receive, always with the final acceptance of direction and
framed within the annual budget.

i) Financial closing:
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-Regulation: Lleida.net follows the regulations set by the general accounting
plan for the recording of its activities. It has the support of advisors for any
doubt or update of the regulations that might affect the company's
procedures.

-Monthly financial closing: The company carries out monthly financial
closings, which allow verifying compliance with the budget set by the Board of
Directors.

-System blocking: once all the entries in the period have been made and
reviewed, the accounting period is blocked to prevent new entries from being
registered.

-Financial closing review: the profits and loss account is reviewed with the
balance sheet on a monthly basis to check whether there are significant
variations, inconsistencies or errors compared to recent periods The
information is generated by the administration department, which is
reviewed by its director who makes the summary reports that are sent to the
executive director for verification and then forwarded to the Board of
Directors for its analysis.

- Reporting of financial information: with the aim of offering greater
transparency about the company's activity, the information on the main
financial figures is published quarterly in a relevant event in MAB. As
mentioned on 5.1

- Publication of the annual accounts and interim financial statements at 30
June: annually the general meeting of shareholders approves the audited
annual accounts prepared by the board of directors and the management
report together with the information required by MAB following the
established guidelines and formats . Also, the interim financial statements as
of 30 June are audited and submitted as established by the MAB regulations.

- Report to investors and analysts: regular financial and management
information is submitted either in person or via conference call The
people responsible for these communications are the Executive Director
and the Financial Director

3.3 Code of conduct in Stock markets
Code of Conduct for Stock Market purposes (hereinafter, the “Code”) was

approved by the LLEIDA.NET Board of Directors at a meeting held on July 26, 2016,
pursuant to the provisions of article 225.2 of the modified text of the Spanish
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Stock Market Act, approved by Spanish Royal Legislative Decree 4/2015, of 23
October. Specifically, the Code includes the precautions contained in Title VII,
Chapter Il of the modified text of the Spanish Stock Market Act applicable to the
company in virtue of the provisions of article 322.3 of said modified text as well as
the implementing regulations including Spanish Royal Decree 1333/2005, of 11
November, which develops the matter of market abuse from the Spanish Stock
Market Act and Circular 4/2009, of 4 November, issued by the CNMV (Spanish
National Securities Market Commission) on the communication of relevant
information. The aim of the Code is to establish a set of rules of conduct governing
the behaviour of LLEIDA.NET and the people affected by the different scopes
regulated by this Code in order to guarantee full and adequate transparency for
the company and protect investors. The body which shall supervise this code is the
Audit Commission

4 RISK ASSESSMENTS:

The Group activities are exposed to various types of financial risk, most especially
credit, liquidity and market risks (exchange rate, interest rate and other price
risks).

4.1 )Credit Risk

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash balances, trade and other
receivables and investments, which represent the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group's credit risk is attributable
mainly to its commercial debts. The amounts are reflected in the net balance of
provisions for bad debts, estimated by the Parent Company's management based
on the experience of previous years and its assessment of the current economic
environment.

4.2) Liquidity Risk
The general situation of the financial markets, especially the banking market, has
been particularly unfavourable for credit claimants. The Group pays constant

attention to the evolution of the different factors that can help to solve liquidity
crises, and especially to the sources of financing and their characteristics.

4.3) Market Risk

The general market situation over the last years has been unfavourable due to the
difficult global economic situation.

4.4) Exchange Rate Risk
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The Group is not exposed to a significant exchange rate risk and therefore does
not trade in hedging instruments.

Changes in interest rates modify the fair value of assets and liabilities bearing a
fixed interest rate as well as the future flows of assets and liabilities referenced to
a variable interest rate. The purpose of risk of management is to achieve a balance
in the debt structure that will minimize the cost of debt deployed over a multiyear
horizon while keeping income statement volatility low

5 COMUNICATION OF INFORMATION

The Company differentiates the information to be communicated to the market in
three basic types:

-Financial information

-Strategic information

-Technical Information

The procedures according to the type of information are detailed below
5.1 Communication of financial information

The Company carries out monthly, quarterly closures, prepares the interim
financial statements under the General Accounting Plan, and conforming to the
criterion of a going company The information is drafted in the Financial
department, where it is reviewed first by its director and then by the Executive
Director. The information is drafted for the Board of Directors by the Financial
Management and sent to the directors so they can formulate the annual accounts
and the interim financial statements. The financial statements are reviewed by the
Audit Commission, drafted by the Board of Directors, and made available to
shareholders for review.

The main milestones achieved by the company are presented at the Shareholders'
Meeting and the voting corresponding to the acceptance of the annual accounts is
made.

The information published in the MAB is prepared based on the consolidated
financial statements, which are obtained directly from the company's ERP .
However, for some companies based abroad the information should be provided
by their local advisors. There is a standardisation of both normative and currency
of the financial information The information is reviewed by the Chief
Administrative Officer

Once the financial data that is considered relevant is obtained, the relevant event
is drafted by the Chief Administrative Officer in cooperation with the Registered
Advisor.
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The relevant event is reviewed by both the Executive Director and the Registered
Advisor and it is reported to the members of the Board of Directors, should they
wish to provide comments.

Lleida.net uploads it on MAB website, and it must be approved by the registered
advisor before or after the beginning of the session. Once uploaded and published
on MAB website , it is published on Lleida.net website under the Investors section

5.2 Strategic information:

Negotiations of strategic nature such as acquisitions of companies, new business
lines are directly piloted by the executive director of the company.

They are included as a point to discuss within the call of the Board of Directors, the
decision-making body.

The relevant event is reviewed by both the Executive Director and the Registered
Advisor and is reported to the members of the Board of Directors, if they wish to
provide comments.

Lleida.net uploads it on MAB website, and it must be approved by the registered
advisor before or after the beginning of the session. Once uploaded and published
on MAB website, it is published on Lleida.net website under the Investors section

5.3 Technical information

Due to the relevance of the technical developments of our products, Lleida.net
patents all its developments and trademarks The procedure of submission of
patents is monitored internally from the department of Intellectual Property. It
has the support of external companies responsible for supervising all deadlines
under the supervision of the head of the department.

To prevent possible errors in the communication channels, the Financial
Department on a quarterly basis asks the IP Department about the status of the
patents

When a patent is granted, the relevant event is drafted by the director of
Intellectual Property with the supervision of the Executive Director together with
the registered Advisor and it is communicated to the members of the Board of
Directors, should they wish to provide any comments. Lleida.net uploads it on
MAB website, and it must be approved by the registered advisor before or after
the beginning of the session. Once uploaded and published on MAB website , it is
published on Lleida.net website under the Investors section

6 MONITORING AND SUPERVISION CONTROL ACTIVITIES:

The audit commission has carried out the following activities throughout 2018 to
control the proper functioning of the internal control system of financial
information:
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- Review of the individual interim financial statements for the period between
1 January 2018 and 30 June 2018 of the parent company - Review of the
Group's individual and consolidated financial statements and annual accounts
for 2018.

- Review the audit plan and the independence of the BDO auditors' external
auditors.

- Review together with the external auditor the development of the audit
work and work risk areas
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